

LEGISLATIVE BILL 7

Approved by the Governor February 21, 1995

Introduced by Executive Board: Hall, 7, Chairperson

AN ACT relating to public funds; to amend sections 2-115, 2-1070, 2-1503.01, 2-1547, 2-1577, 2-1587, 2-1808, 2-2317, 2-2408.02, 2-2705, 2-2705.01, 2-3110, 2-3322, 2-3413, 2-3521, 2-3633, 2-3763, 2-3812, 2-3814, 2-3911, 2-4018, 3-126, 3-156, 8-1120, 35-601, 37-202.03, 37-428, 37-1305, 39-846, 39-1390, 39-2401, 43-1906, 44-707.03, 46-670, 46-1121, 48-617, 48-620, 48-1707, 48-1810, 50-437, 51-606, 54-147, 54-857, 54-1173, 54-1371, 54-2004, 55-131, 60-305.14, 60-1409, 66-1224, 68-301, 68-723, 71-1,237, 71-1,243, 71-1,283, 71-1,288, 71-222.02, 71-381, 71-2016, 71-2201, 71-4718, 71-4732, 71-6116, 71-6228, 72-202, 72-232.07, 74-1317, 77-3,111, 77-2365, 79-340, 79-1345, 79-1910.01, 79-2009.01, 79-2107, 79-3363, 80-301.02, 80-401, 81-161.06, 81-201.05, 81-2,147.11, 81-2,162.27, 81-2,164.03, 81-2,174, 81-2,237, 81-815.30, 81-815.45, 81-815.51, 81-815.52, 81-829.42, 81-845, 81-8,107, 81-8,110.07, 81-8,225, 81-8,239.03, 81-8,239.09, 81-8,260.02, 81-912, 81-1108.02, 81-1108.24, 81-1117, 81-1120, 81-1120.22, 81-1120.40, 81-1201.22, 81-1354.03 to 81-1354.05, 81-1414.04, 81-15,103, 81-15,143, 81-15,161.01, 81-15,183, 81-1635, 81-1835, 81-2004, 81-2004.02, 81-2013, 81-2236, 81-2272, 82-108.02, 83-121, 83-129, 83-169, 83-210.01, 84-133, 84-219, 84-220, 84-414, 84-613, 84-907.03, 84-1227, 85-113, 85-168, 85-192, 85-606.01, 88-552, and 90-248, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, and sections 1-111, 2-1208.04, 2-15,122, 9-811.01, 32-204, 33-102, 43-1321, 45-127, 46-1403, 48-1,103, 48-622.01, 48-622.02, 48-2115, 50-114.05, 69-1317, 71-1,206.13, 71-5661, and 71-7528, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994; to delete internal references to sections repealed in 1994; to harmonize internal references; and to repeal the original sections.

Be it enacted by the people of the State of Nebraska,

Section 1. Section 1-111, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

1-111. (1) All fees collected under the provisions of the Public Accountancy Act of 1957 and all costs collected under subdivision (8) of section 1-148 shall be remitted by the secretary of the board to the State Treasurer for credit to the Public Accountants Fund which is hereby created. Such fund shall, if and when specifically appropriated by the Legislature during any biennium for that purpose, be paid out from time to time by the State Treasurer upon warrants drawn by the Director of Administrative Services on vouchers signed by the secretary of the board, and such office and expense thereof shall not be supported or paid from any other fund of the state. Any money in the Public Accountants Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(2) All civil penalties collected under subdivision (5) of section 1-148 shall be remitted by the secretary of the board to the State Treasurer for credit to the permanent school fund.

Sec. 2. Section 2-115, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-115. The Nebraska State Board of Agriculture is hereby authorized to improve and expand the grandstand and related facilities on the Nebraska State Fairgrounds and to pay the cost thereof by issuing and selling revenue bonds pledging and hypothecating the revenue and earnings from the grandstand and related facilities and the revenue from the operation of the Nebraska State Fairgrounds. The board may, by resolution or agreement, specify the terms and conditions to be performed by the board and the rights of the holders of such revenue bonds. If any proceeds from such bonds shall be available for investment, such investment shall be made by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 3. Section 2-1070, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-1070. The Department of Agriculture is authorized to collect money paid by participating ranchers as their estimated one-third share of the

cost of conducting the control program. Such money shall be deposited in credited to the Grasshopper Control Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. Federal funds paid to the department as the federal one-third share of the cost of the program shall be deposited in a federal fund specifically established for that purpose. All money in such funds shall be expended solely for the administration of the program authorized by sections 2-1068 to 2-1070. Any money in the fund Grasshopper Control Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 4. Section 2-1208.04, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

2-1208.04. (1) Racetracks shall separately account for their gross exotic daily receipts. For all meets commencing after July 16, 1994, any racetrack that had for its previous race meet a total parimutuel handle of less than fifty million dollars shall withhold an amount equal to one-half of one percent of such receipts and any racetrack that had for its previous race meet a total parimutuel handle of fifty million dollars or more shall withhold an amount equal to one percent of such receipts, except that for all meets commencing on or after January 1, 1995, each racetrack shall withhold an amount equal to one-fourth of one percent of such receipts, which amount shall be deducted from purses at the withholding track. Such amount withheld shall be paid to the State Racing Commission on the last day of each month during each race meeting for deposit in the Track Distribution Fund, which fund is hereby created.

(2) The fund shall be distributed monthly to recipient racetracks which conduct wagering by the parimutuel method on thoroughbred horseracing. Such racetracks shall receive the percentage which the total number of days of horseraces run at such racetrack in the year of distribution bears to the total number of days of horseraces run at all such racetracks in the year of distribution. Before January 1, 1995, one-half of the amount received under this subsection by a racetrack shall be used to supplement purses at the track, and on and after January 1, 1995, the entire amount received by a racetrack shall be used to supplement purses at the track.

(3) Any money in the Track Distribution Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. Any money in the fund which is not distributed at the end of the calendar year shall be available for expenditure by the commission to defray its expenses pursuant to section 2-1209.

(4) The assessment required by this section shall be in addition to the assessments, taxes, and fees required by Chapter 2, article 12.

Sec. 5. Section 2-1503.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-1503.01. The State Treasurer shall create and establish the Small Watersheds Flood Control Fund. The State Treasurer shall credit to the fund such money as ~~shall be~~ is specifically appropriated during any session of the Legislature. The State Treasurer shall also credit such fund with money contributed to or remitted by local organizations which was obtained through the sale or lease of property procured through the use of state funds as authorized in sections 2-1502 to 2-1547. In addition, funds, services, and properties made available by the United States or one of its departments or agencies may be credited to ~~this~~ the fund. The money in the Small Watersheds Flood Control Fund fund shall not be subject to fiscal year or biennium limitations. Any money in the Small Watersheds Flood Control Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 6. Section 2-1547, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-1547. The State Treasurer is hereby directed to create and establish the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission Cash Fund. The State Treasurer shall credit to such fund such money as ~~shall be~~ is specifically appropriated or reappropriated by the Legislature. The State Treasurer shall also credit such fund with payments, if any, accepted for services rendered pursuant to section 2-1506. The funds made available to the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission by the United States, through the Soil Conservation Service of the Department of Agriculture or through any other agencies, shall be credited to the fund by the State Treasurer. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. The Nebraska Natural Resources

~~Commission~~ commission shall allocate money from the fund to pay costs of the programs or activities for which the money has been appropriated, reappropriated, or collected. The Director of Administrative Services, upon receipt of proper vouchers approved by the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission ~~commission~~, shall issue warrants on the fund, and the State Treasurer shall countersign and pay from, but never in excess of, the amounts to the credit of the fund. ~~Funds in the Nebraska Soil and Water Conservation Fund, created pursuant to this section, on August 30, 1987, shall be transferred to the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission Cash Fund on such date.~~

Sec. 7. Section 2-1577, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-1577. (1) There is hereby created the Nebraska Soil and Water Conservation Fund to be administered by the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission and to which the State Treasurer shall credit such money as shall ~~(a) be is (a)~~ appropriated to the fund by the Legislature, (b) be paid to the state as fees, deposits, payments, and repayments relating to the fund, both principal and interest, and (c) be donated as gifts, bequests, or other contributions to such fund from public or private entities. Funds made available by any department or agency of the United States may also be credited to such fund if so directed by such department or agency.

(2) The money in the Nebraska Soil and Water Conservation Fund fund shall not be subject to any fiscal-year limitation or lapse provision of unexpended balance at the end of any such fiscal year or biennium.

(3) Any money in the Nebraska Soil and Water Conservation Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 8. Section 2-1587, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-1587. There is hereby created the Nebraska Resources Development Fund to be administered by the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission and to which the State Treasurer shall credit, to carry out the provisions of sections 2-1586 to 2-1595, such money as shall be is (1) appropriated to the fund by the Legislature, be (2) paid to the state as fees, deposits, payments, and repayments relating to the fund, both principal and interest, and be (3) donated as gifts, bequests, or other contributions to such fund from public or private entities. Funds made available by any department or agency of the United States may also be credited to this fund if so directed by such department or agency. The money in the Nebraska Resources Development Fund fund shall not be subject to any fiscal year or biennium limitation requiring reappropriation of the unexpended balance at the end of the fiscal year or biennium. To aid in the funding of projects and to prevent excessive fluctuations in appropriation requirements for the Nebraska Resources Development Fund fund, the commission shall create a reserve fund to be used only for projects requiring total expenditures from the Nebraska Resources Development Fund in excess of five million dollars. Unless disapproved by the Governor, the commission may credit to such reserve fund that portion of any appropriation to the Nebraska Resources Development Fund which exceeds five million dollars. The commission may also credit to the reserve fund such other funds as it determines are available. Any money in the Nebraska Resources Development Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 9. Section 2-15,122, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

2-15,122. There is hereby created the Natural Resources Enhancement Fund. The State Treasurer shall credit to the fund for the uses and purposes of section 2-15,123 such money as is specifically appropriated and such funds, fees, donations, gifts, services, or devises or bequests of real or personal property received by the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission from any source, federal, state, public, or private, to be used by the commission for the purpose of funding programs listed in subsection (2) of section 2-15,123. The commission shall allocate money from the fund pursuant to section 2-15,123. The fund shall be exempt from provisions relating to lapsing of appropriations. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 10. Section 2-1808, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-1808. The State Treasurer is hereby directed to establish and set

up in the treasury of the State of Nebraska a fund to be known as the Nebraska Potato Development Fund, to which fund shall be credited, for the uses and purposes of sections 2-1801 to 2-1811 the Nebraska Potato Development Act and its enforcement, all taxes, penalties and fees collected by the Department of Agriculture. After appropriation, the Director of Administrative Services, upon receipt of proper vouchers approved by the director of the department, shall issue his or her warrants on said such funds, and the State Treasurer shall pay the same out of the money credited to said the fund. Any money in the Nebraska Potato Development Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 11. Section 2-2317, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-2317. The State Treasurer is hereby directed to establish and set up in the treasury of the State of Nebraska a fund to be known as the Nebraska Wheat Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund, to which fund shall be credited, for the uses and purposes of sections 2-2301 to 2-2319 and their the Nebraska Wheat Resources Act and its enforcement, all taxes collected by the board pursuant to sections 2-2301 to 2-2319 the act. After appropriation, the Director of Administrative Services shall, upon receipt of proper vouchers approved by an officer of the board, issue his or her warrants on such fund, and the State Treasurer shall pay the same out of the money credited to such fund. The board shall at each regular meeting review and approve all expenditures made since its last regular meeting. Any money in the Nebraska Wheat Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 12. Section 2-2408.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-2408.02. The State Treasurer is hereby designated as the custodian of all funds or fees received by the department from any source, federal, state, public, or private, to be used in the performance of its duties. The State Treasurer is authorized to receive and provide for the proper custody of such funds or fees and establish such special weather modification funds and accounts as may be necessary to carry out the intent and purposes of sections 2-2407, 2-2408.01, and 2-2408.02. The Director of Administrative Services shall draw warrants upon such funds or accounts upon presentation of proper vouchers by the department. Any money in the special weather modification funds or accounts available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 13. Section 2-2705, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-2705. Application to the board for the testing of a tractor model by the University of Nebraska shall be accompanied by the fee prescribed in section 2-2705.01 and such fee as shall be is prescribed by the Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska as a partial reimbursement for making the application.

Fees collected for the testing of tractors by the Nebraska Tractor Testing Laboratory shall be deposited in credited to the University of Nebraska Tractor Test Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. The fund shall be used by the Nebraska Tractor Testing Laboratory to defray the expenses of testing tractors. Any accrued interest shall also be credited to the fund, except that the cash carryover of such fund from one biennium to the next biennium shall not exceed, by more than fifteen percent, the total cash fund expenditures for the average of the five preceding years. Any amount in excess of such fifteen percent shall be forwarded to the University of Nebraska. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

The Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska may establish and change from time to time as it determines advisable a schedule of fees for such tractor tests, except that such fee schedule shall not include the application fee prescribed in section 2-2705.01.

Sec. 14. Section 2-2705.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-2705.01. There is hereby imposed a fee of fifty dollars for each application for any permit made to the board pursuant to sections 2-2701 to 2-2711. Such fee shall be in addition to the fees provided for in section

2-2705 and shall be paid to the department. All fees collected by the department pursuant to this section shall be paid into the state treasury and credited by remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Tractor Permit Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. The fund shall be used by the department to defray the expenses of administering sections 2-2701 to 2-2711. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 15. Section 2-3110, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3110. All fees collected by the director under the Nebraska Soil and Plant Analysis Laboratory Act shall be remitted by the director to the State Treasurer for deposit in the state treasury to the credit of credit to the Soil and Plant Analysis Laboratory Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. Such fund shall be used by the department to aid in defraying the expenses of administering the Nebraska Soil and Plant Analysis Laboratory Act. Any money in the special fund established for the Nebraska Soil and Plant Analysis Laboratory Act on July 9, 1988, shall be transferred to the Soil and Plant Analysis Laboratory Cash Fund. Any money in the Soil and Plant Analysis Laboratory Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 16. Section 2-3322, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3322. The State Treasurer shall establish in the state treasury a fund to be known as the Soybean Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund, to which fund shall be credited all fees collected by the board pursuant to sections 2-3301 to 2-3324 the Nebraska Soybean Resources Act. Such fund shall be expended solely for the administration of sections 2-3301 to 2-3324 the act. Any money in the Soybean Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 17. Section 2-3413, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3413. (1) The State Treasurer is hereby directed to establish in the treasury of the State of Nebraska a fund to be known as the Nebraska Poultry and Egg Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund, to which shall be credited all fees collected by the department pursuant to sections 2-3401 to 2-3416 the Nebraska Poultry and Egg Resources Act. After appropriation, the Director of Administrative Services shall, upon receipt of proper vouchers approved by the director, issue warrants on such fund including refund payments authorized by section 2-3409 and the State Treasurer shall pay the warrants out of the money credited to such fund. Any money in the Nebraska Poultry and Egg Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(2) The department may accept grants, contributions, or other funds from any private or federal, state, or other public source to be used to administer the Nebraska Poultry and Egg Resources Act and to conduct programs under such act.

Sec. 18. Section 2-3521, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3521. The proceeds of license and inspection fees shall be paid into the state treasury by the department and placed by remitted to the State Treasurer in for credit to the Graded Egg Fund which is hereby created. Such fund shall be used by the department to aid in defraying the expenses of administering the Nebraska Graded Egg Act. Any money in the Graded Egg Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 19. Section 2-3633, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3633. The State Treasurer is hereby directed to establish and set up in the treasury of the State of Nebraska a fund to be known as the Nebraska Corn Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund, to which fund shall be credited, for the uses and purposes of sections 2-3601 to 2-3635 and their the Nebraska Corn Resources Act and its enforcement, all taxes collected by the board pursuant to the provisions of sections 2-3601 to 2-3635 act. Such fund shall be expended solely for the administration of the provisions of sections 2-3601 to 2-3635 act. Any money in the Nebraska Corn Development;

Utilization, and Marketing Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 20. Section 2-3763, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3763. The State Treasurer shall establish in the treasury of the State of Nebraska a fund to be known as the Dry Bean Development, Utilization, Promotion, and Education Fund, to which fund shall be credited funds collected by the commission pursuant to the Dry Bean Resources Act. The fund shall be expended for the administration of such act. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 21. Section 2-3812, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3812. There is hereby created a cash fund to be known as the Nebraska Agricultural Products Marketing Cash Fund. The fund shall consist of money appropriated by the Legislature which is received as gifts or grants or collected as fees or charges from any source, including federal, state, public, and private. The fund shall be utilized for the purpose of carrying out the Nebraska Agricultural Products Marketing Act. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 22. Section 2-3814, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-3814. (1) In order to assist Nebraska grain producers and the state's grain industry in competing for a larger share of the international grain trade against the more stringent grain standards of other exporting nations, the department shall, upon request, provide inspection of grain shipments assembled by farmers and grain dealers who are arranging or attempting to arrange grain sales with foreign buyers. As a means of expediting such sales and to insure the quality of grain shipments for export originating in Nebraska, the department shall provide grain inspections. Such inspections shall include a certificate stating the quality factors present in the grain shipments destined for export points. A special certificate shall be designed by the department for shipments that substantially exceed grade and quality factors required under current United States grain standards. Such special certificate shall be designated as Nebraska Origin and Premium Quality Grain and shall be issued only on grain shipments containing levels of grade and quality factors totaling not more than fifty percent of the maximum allowable limits of total defects and other quality factors as required by current United States Grade Number One.

(2) The department shall assess and collect a fee for the inspections made. The fee shall be in an amount equal to the costs of the inspections.

(3) The department may:

(a) Contract for services which are necessary to carry out its duties under sections 2-3813 and 2-3814;

(b) Accept funds or fees from any source, including, but not limited to, federal, state, public, and private, to be used in carrying out sections 2-3813 and 2-3814 such sections;

(c) Expend funds for purposes of carrying out sections 2-3813 and 2-3814 such sections; and

(d) Enter upon public or private land for the purpose of inspecting such grain.

(4) The department may adopt and promulgate rules and regulations to aid in implementing sections 2-3813 and 2-3814 such sections. The rules and regulations may include, but shall not be limited to, provisions governing:

(a) Assignment of responsibilities; (b) the charges and fees to be assessed; (c) setting the grades; and (d) methods for determining quality factors.

(5) There is hereby created a cash fund to be known as the Nebraska Origin and Premium Quality Grain Cash Fund. The fund shall consist of money appropriated by the Legislature which is received as gifts or grants or collected as fees from any source, including, but not limited to, federal, state, public, and private. The fund shall be utilized for the purpose of carrying out sections 2-3813 and 2-3814. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 23. Section 2-3911, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is

amended to read:

2-3911. All fees paid to the department in accordance with the Nebraska Pasteurized Milk Law shall be paid to the state treasury and by remitted to the State Treasurer credited for credit to the Pure Milk Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. All money credited to the fund shall be appropriated to the uses of the department to aid in defraying the expenses of administering such law. Any money in the Pure Milk Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 24. Section 2-4018, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

2-4018. The State Treasurer shall establish in the state treasury a fund to be known as the Grain Sorghum Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund, to which fund shall be credited all fees collected by the board pursuant to sections 2-4001 to 2-4020 the Grain Sorghum Resources Act. Such fund shall be expended solely for the administration of sections 2-4001 to 2-4020 the act. Any money in the Grain Sorghum Development, Utilization, and Marketing Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 25. Section 3-126, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

3-126. The Department of Aeronautics Cash Fund is created. All money received by the department, pursuant to sections 3-101 to 3-156, the State Aeronautics Department Act shall be deposited in the state treasury and placed by remitted to the State Treasurer in the Department of Aeronautics Cash Fund for credit to the fund. The department is authorized, whether acting for this state or as the agent of any of its municipalities, or when requested by the United States Government or any agency or department thereof, to disburse such money. Any money in the Department of Aeronautics Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 26. Section 3-156, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

3-156. The Department of Aeronautics Trust Fund is created. The necessary expenses incurred in the sale of such property under section 3-155 shall be paid from the Department of Aeronautics Cash Fund, and the proceeds from the sale of such property shall be deposited in credited to the Department of Aeronautics Trust Fund after reimbursement of costs of sale have been made to the Department of Aeronautics Cash Fund. The net proceeds from the disposal of such property shall be used by the Department of Aeronautics in conformance with any agreements upon which the Federal Aviation Administration conditions its consent to the sale of the aforementioned land and the quit claim deeds (1) filed in the office of the register of deeds of Dodge County on November 17, 1947, and recorded in Deeds Record 89 on page 342 and September 16, 1948, and recorded in Deeds Record 89 on page 578, (2) filed in the office of the register of deeds of Red Willow County on September 16, 1948, in Deeds Record 71 on page 17, September 14, 1966, in Deeds Record 91 on page 281, and December 17, 1968, in Deeds Record 93 on page 549, (3) filed in the office of the register of deeds of Clay County on November 17, 1947, in Deeds Record 86 on page 561, September 16, 1948, in Deeds Record 87 on page 148, and March 14, 1968, in Deeds Record 95 on page 321, (4) filed in the office of the register of deeds of Fillmore County on September 16, 1948, in Deeds Record 39 on page 229, February 21, 1968, in Deeds Record 25 on page 90, January 26, 1948, in Deeds Record 39 on page 189, September 21, 1948, in Deeds Record 39 on page 236, and February 13, 1968, in Deeds Record 25 on page 83, and (5) filed in the office of the register of deeds of Thayer County on January 31, 1948, in Deeds Record 48 on page 493, September 16, 1948, in Deeds Record 48 on page 581, and December 29, 1967, in Deeds Record 58 on page 531, and the rules and regulations of the Federal Aviation Administration, part 155, adopted December 7, 1962. Such Any money in the Department of Aeronautics Trust Fund when invested available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 27. Section 8-1120, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

8-1120. (1) Sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 Except as otherwise provided in this section, the Securities Act of Nebraska shall be administered by the Director of Banking and Finance who may employ such assistant or assistants or Counsel as may be reasonably necessary for the purpose thereof, and who may

designate one of such assistants as an assistant director. ~~The 7 and the~~ director may delegate to such assistant director or counsel any ~~and all~~ powers, authority, and duties by sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 imposed upon or granted to the director ~~under the act~~, such as may be lawfully delegated under the common law or the statutes of this state. The director may also employ special counsel with respect to any investigation conducted by him or her under sections 8-1101 to 8-1124, ~~the act~~ or with respect to any litigation to which the director is a party under sections 8-1101 to 8-1124; ~~PROVIDED, the act,~~ ~~except~~ that security issued by and representing an interest in or a debt of, or guaranteed by, any insurance company shall be registered, pursuant to the provisions of sections 8-1104 to 8-1109, with the Director of Insurance who shall as to such registrations administer and enforce the ~~provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124, act,~~ and as pertains to the administration and enforcement of such registration of such securities all references in sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~ to director shall mean the Director of Insurance.

(2) It shall be unlawful for the director or any of his or her officers or employees to use for personal benefit any information which is filed with or obtained by the director and which is not made public. No provision of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~ shall authorize the director or any of his or her officers or employees to disclose any such information except among themselves or when necessary or appropriate in a proceeding or investigation under the provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~act~~. No provision of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~ shall either create or derogate from any privilege which exists at common law or otherwise when documentary or other evidence is sought under a subpoena directed to the director or any of his or her officers or employees.

(3) The director may from time to time make, amend, and rescind such rules and forms as are necessary to carry out the provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~act~~. No rule or form may be made unless the director finds that the action is necessary or appropriate in the public interest or for the protection of investors and consistent with the purposes fairly intended by the policy and provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~.

In prescribing rules and forms the director may cooperate with the securities administrator administrators of the other states and the Securities and Exchange Commission with a view to effectuating the policy of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the Securities Act of Nebraska~~ to achieve maximum uniformity in the form and content of registration statements, applications, and reports wherever practicable. All rules and forms of the director shall be published and mailed to each registered broker-dealer.

(4) No provision of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~ imposing any liability shall apply to any act done or omitted in good faith in conformity with any rule, form, or order of the director, notwithstanding that the rule or form may later be amended or rescinded or be determined by judicial or other authority to be invalid for any reason.

(5) Every hearing in an administrative proceeding shall be public unless the director in his or her discretion grants a request joined in by all the respondents that the hearing be conducted privately.

(6) ~~The Securities Act Cash Fund is created.~~ All filing fees, registration fees, and all other fees and all money collected by or paid to the director under any of the provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~ shall be paid into the state treasury and by ~~remitted to the State Treasurer credited for credit to the Securities Act Cash Fund, PROVIDED, fund, except~~ that registration fees collected by or paid to the Director of Insurance pursuant to the provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~ shall be credited to the Department of Insurance Cash Fund. The Securities Act Cash Fund shall be used for the purpose of administering and enforcing the provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the act~~, except that transfers may be made to the General Fund at the direction of the Legislature. All of such money is appropriated and shall be appropriated for such purposes. Any money in the Securities Act Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 ~~the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~

(7) A document is filed when it is received by the director. The director shall keep a register of all applications for registration and registration statements which are or have ever been effective under sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~the Securities Act of Nebraska~~ and all denial, suspension, or revocation orders which have ever been entered under the provisions of sections 8-1101 to 8-1124 ~~act~~. The register shall be open for public inspection. The information contained in or filed with any registration statement, application, or report may be made available to the public under such rules as the director shall prescribe.

(8) Upon request and at such reasonable charges as he or she shall prescribe, the director shall furnish to any person photostatic or other copies, certified under his or her seal of office if requested, of any entry in the register or any document which is a matter of public record. In any proceeding or prosecution under ~~sections 8-1101 to 8-1124~~ the act, any copy so certified shall be prima facie evidence of the contents of the entry or document certified.

(9) The director in his or her discretion may honor requests from interested persons for interpretative opinions.

Sec. 28. Section 9-811.01, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

9-811.01. The Tax Commissioner may apply to the Director of Administrative Services and the Auditor of Public Accounts to establish and maintain a Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund. The money used to initiate and maintain the fund shall be drawn solely from the State Lottery Operation Cash Fund. The Tax Commissioner shall determine the amount of money to be held in the Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund, consistent with carrying out the duties and responsibilities of the division but not to exceed five thousand dollars for the entire division. This restriction shall not apply to funds otherwise appropriated to the State Lottery Operation Cash Fund for investigative purposes. When the Director of Administrative Services and the Auditor of Public Accounts have approved the establishment of the Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund, a voucher shall be submitted to the Department of Administrative Services accompanied by such information as the department may require for the establishment of the fund. The Director of Administrative Services shall issue a warrant for the amount specified and deliver it to the division. The fund may be replenished as necessary, but the total amount in the fund shall not exceed ten thousand dollars in any fiscal year. The fund shall be audited by the Auditor of Public Accounts.

Any prize amounts won, less any investigative expenditures, by department personnel with funds drawn from the Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund or reimbursed from the State Lottery Operation Cash Fund shall be deposited into the Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund.

For the purpose of establishing and maintaining legislative oversight and accountability, the Department of Revenue shall maintain records of all expenditures, disbursements, and transfers of cash from the Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund.

By September 15 of each year, the department shall report to the budget division of the Department of Administrative Services and to the Legislative Fiscal Analyst the unexpended balance existing on June 30 of the previous fiscal year relating to investigative expenses in the Lottery Investigation Petty Cash Fund and any funds existing on June 30 of the previous fiscal year in the possession of division personnel involved in investigations. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 29. Section 32-204, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

32-204. The Voter Registration Cash Fund is hereby created. The fund shall be used by the Secretary of State to pay for the printing and distribution of forms for voter registration. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 30. Section 33-102, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

33-102. The Secretary of State shall be entitled to, for receiving, affixing the great seal to, and forwarding the commission of a notary public, the sum of fifteen dollars and the additional sum of fifteen dollars for filing and approving the bond of a notary public. The Secretary of State shall be entitled to the sum of fifteen dollars for receiving a renewal application pursuant to section 64-104.

The fees received by the Secretary of State pursuant to this section shall be remitted to the State Treasurer for credit seventy-five percent to the General Fund and twenty-five percent to the Administration Cash Fund which is hereby created. Any money in the Administration Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 31. Section 35-601, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

35-601. There is hereby created in the state treasury a fund to be known as the Emergency Firefighting Fund, to be used by the State Fire Marshal to assist in controlling and extinguishing wildland fires. Any money in the Emergency Firefighting Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 32. Section 37-202.03, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

37-202.03. Fees received for lifetime licenses shall be deposited in credited to the State Game Fund and shall not be expended but may be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. Income from such investments may be expended by the Game and Parks Commission.

Sec. 33. Section 37-428, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

37-428. There is created a fund to be known as the Land and Water Conservation Fund. All money made available to the Land and Water Conservation Fund fund for matching purposes by state appropriations shall be remitted to the State Treasurer and by him placed in for credit to such fund. Land and Water Conservation Fund money Money in the fund shall be used by the Game and Parks Commission under the provisions of Public Law 88-578, 88th Congress, for financing administrative and project costs thereunder. The Game and Parks Commission may make grants-in-aid to political subdivisions of the state from money made available for matching purposes by state appropriations in amounts not exceeding twenty-five percent of the cost of approved projects submitted by such political subdivisions. Any money in the Land and Water Conservation Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 34. Section 37-1305, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

37-1305. Any money in the Nebraska Outdoor Recreation Development Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 35. Section 39-846, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

39-846. In order to expedite the replacement of deficient bridges, the State Aid Bridge Fund is hereby created to provide assistance to counties for replacement of bridges. Any money in the State Aid Bridge Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 36. Section 39-1390, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

39-1390. The State Recreation Road Fund is created. The money in the State Recreation Road Fund fund shall be transferred by the State Treasurer, on the first day of each month, to the Department of Roads and shall be expended by the Director-State Engineer with the approval of the Governor for construction and maintenance of dustless-surface roads to be designated as state recreation roads as provided in this section. Except as to roads under contract as of March 15, 1972, only those roads, excluding state highways, giving direct and immediate access to or located within state parks, state recreation areas, or other recreational or historical areas, shall be eligible for designation as state recreation roads. Such eligibility shall be determined by the Game and Parks Commission and certified to the Director-State Engineer, who shall, after receiving such certification, be authorized to commence construction on such recreation roads as funds are available. After construction of such roads they shall be shown on the map provided by section 39-1311. Preference in construction shall be based on existing or potential traffic use by other than local residents. Unless the State Highway Commission otherwise recommends, such roads upon completion of construction shall be incorporated into the state highway system. If such a road is not incorporated into the state highway system, the Department of Roads and the county within which such road is located shall enter into a maintenance agreement establishing the responsibility for maintenance of the road, the maintenance standards to be met, and the responsibility for maintenance costs. Any money in the State Recreation Road Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to

the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 37. Section 39-2401, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

39-2401. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Highway Allocation Fund. There shall be paid into such fund the amounts disbursed from time to time from the Highway Trust Fund as provided by law together with such sums as may be appropriated thereto from the General Fund. Any money in the Highway Allocation Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 38. Section 43-1321, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

43-1321. There is hereby created the Foster Care Review Board Cash Fund. The fund shall be administered by the State Foster Care Review Board. The board shall remit revenue from the following sources to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund:

- (1) Registration and other fees received for training, seminars, or conferences fully or partially sponsored or hosted by the board;
- (2) Payments to offset printing, postage, and other expenses for books, documents, or other materials printed or published by the board; and
- (3) Money received by the board as gifts, grants, reimbursements, or appropriations from any source intended for the purposes of the fund.

The fund shall be used for the administration of the Foster Care Review Act.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 39. Section 43-1906, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

43-1906. (1) There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Nebraska Child Abuse Prevention Fund. The Legislature shall appropriate two hundred fifty thousand dollars each year from the General Fund to the Nebraska Child Abuse Prevention Fund. All amounts which may be received from grants, gifts, bequests, the federal government, or other sources granted or given for the purposes specified in sections 43-1901 to 43-1906 shall be credited to and deposited in remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Nebraska Child Abuse Prevention Fund, by the State Treasurer. The fund shall be administered and disbursed by the department.

(2) Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(3) Until the amount in the fund exceeds two and one-half million dollars, not more than seventy-five percent of the money deposited in credited to the fund each year plus seventy-five percent of all earnings from the investment of money in the fund credited during the previous fiscal year shall be available for disbursement by the board in accordance with sections 43-1901 to 43-1906, except that any amounts which may be received from any grants, gifts, bequests, the federal government, or other sources shall be disbursed pursuant to the conditions imposed by such sources. Money not available for disbursement shall be retained and accumulated in the fund. When the assets in the fund exceed two and one-half million dollars, only the earnings from the investment of money in the fund credited during the previous fiscal year or other income credited to the fund shall be available for disbursement by the board in accordance with sections 43-1901 to 43-1906 such sections.

(4) In any one fiscal year, no more than twenty percent of the annually available funds as provided in subsection (3) of this section shall be disbursed to any one agency, organization, or individual.

(5) Funds allocated from the fund shall only be used for purposes authorized under such sections 43-1901 to 43-1906 and shall not be used to supplant any existing governmental program or service. No grants may be made to any state department or agency.

(6) When the State Treasurer certifies that the assets in the fund exceed two and one-half million dollars, the additional docket fees prescribed in section 33-106.03 and the additional charge for supplying a certified copy of the record of any birth as provided in sections 71-612, 71-617.15, 71-627, and 71-628 shall be terminated.

Sec. 40. Section 44-707.03, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

44-707.03. If the Director of Insurance shall be ~~is~~ satisfied as to

the reasonableness of the budget estimate as provided in section 44-707.02, he or she shall determine the portion of the funds required by such budget estimate, to be assessed as provided in this section, by deducting from such budget estimate or from the sum of two hundred fifty thousand dollars, whichever is less, any amounts received or receivable by the committee from other states whose laws the laws of which do not substantially conform to the method of assessment provided by sections 44-707.01 to 44-707.04 and applying to the remainder the proportion which the total investments in securities of domestic life insurers bears to the total investments in securities of life insurers domiciled in this and other states whose laws the laws of which authorize and require assessments on substantially the same basis as herein provided. The director shall thereafter as soon as convenient, by notice stating the method of computation thereof, assess the amount to be paid on account of such expenses, pro rata upon all domestic life insurers in the proportion which the total investments in securities of each domestic life insurer shall bear to the total investments in securities of all such insurers. The total investments in securities of any life insurer for purposes of this section shall be the total admitted value of stocks and bonds reported as such in its annual statement last filed prior to such assessment with the director or other supervisory official of its state of domicile. Upon receipt of such notice each insurance company shall within thirty days pay the assessment to the director who shall remit such funds to the State Treasurer as custodian thereof. The State Treasurer shall place such money in a fund to be known as for credit to the Valuation of Securities Fund, which fund is created. After appropriation by the Legislature, the Director of Administrative Services, upon proper vouchers approved by the director, shall issue his or her warrants upon the fund, and the State Treasurer shall pay the same warrants out of the money credited to the fund. Such disbursements shall be made to the Committee on Valuation of Securities of the National Association of Insurance Commissioners for the purposes of sections 44-707.01 to 44-707.04. Any money in the Valuation of Securities Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 41. Section 45-127, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

45-127. All original license fees and annual renewal fees shall be collected by the Department of Banking and Finance and deposited with remitted to the State Treasurer and shall be credited for credit to the Loan Act Fund, Department of Banking and Finance, State of Nebraska, which fund, during any biennium, shall be used exclusively for the administration and enforcement of the Delayed Deposit Services Licensing Act, the Nebraska Installment Sales Act, and sections 45-114 to 45-155, if and when specifically appropriated by the Legislature for that purpose. All investigation and examination fees, charges, and costs collected by or paid to the Department of Banking and Finance under any of the provisions of such acts and sections, shall likewise be deposited and credited to the Loan Act Fund fund and shall be available for the uses and purposes of the fund. It is not the intention of the Legislature that any revenue arising hereunder shall inure to any school fund of the State of Nebraska in any of its governmental subdivisions. Any money in the Loan Act Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 42. Section 46-670, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

46-670. The director may adopt, in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, such rules and regulations as are necessary to the discharge of duties assigned to the director by the Nebraska Ground Water Management and Protection Act. All fees paid to the director in accordance with the terms of the act shall be paid into the Ground Water Management Fund which is hereby created and which shall be administered by the director. Any money credited to the fund may be utilized by the director for payments of expenses incurred in the administration of the act. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 43. Section 46-1121, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

46-1121. (1) The fee for initial application for a permit or special permit shall be thirty dollars payable to the district. Twenty-five dollars of the fee shall be retained by the district and five dollars paid by the district to the department.

After January 1, 1988, the annual fee for renewal of a permit or special permit shall be ten dollars paid to the district. Two dollars of the annual fee shall be paid by the district to the department.

All fees shall be used by the district and the department to administer the Nebraska Chemigation Act. The department's fee shall be deposited in credited to the Chemigation Costs Fund which is hereby created. All fees collected by the department pursuant to the act shall be paid into the state treasury and credited by remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(2) All permits issued pursuant to sections 46-1117 and 46-1117.01 shall be annual permits and shall expire each year on June 1. A permit may be renewed each year upon payment of the annual renewal fee and completion of a form provided by the district which lists the names of all chemicals used in chemigation the previous year. Once a permit has expired, it shall not be reinstated without meeting all of the requirements for a new permit including an inspection and payment of the initial application fee.

Sec. 44. Section 46-1403, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

46-1403. There is hereby created the Water Well Decommissioning Fund. The State Treasurer shall credit to the fund for the uses and purposes of sections 46-1401 and 46-1403 to 46-1405 such money as is specifically appropriated and such funds, fees, donations, gifts, services, or devises or bequests of real or personal property received by the Nebraska Natural Resources Commission from any source, federal, state, public, or private, to be used by the commission for the purpose of accelerating the decommissioning of illegal water wells. The commission shall allocate money from the fund for purposes of sections 46-1401 and 46-1403 to 46-1405. The fund shall be exempt from provisions relating to lapsing of appropriations. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 45. Section 48-1,103, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

48-1,103. There is hereby established in the state treasury a Workers' Compensation Claims Revolving Fund, to be administered by the Risk Manager, from which all workers' compensation costs, including prevention and administration, shall be paid. The fund shall receive deposits from assessments against state agencies charged by the Risk Manager to pay for workers' compensation costs. When the amount of money in the Workers' Compensation Claims Revolving Fund is not sufficient to pay any awards or judgments under sections 48-192 to 48-1,109, the Risk Manager shall immediately advise the Legislature and request an emergency appropriation to satisfy such awards and judgments. Any money in the Workers' Compensation Claims Fund shall on April 13, 1994, be transferred to the Workers' Compensation Claims Revolving Fund. Any money in the Workers' Compensation Claims Revolving Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 46. Section 48-617, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

48-617. There is hereby established as a special fund, separate and apart from all public money or funds of this state, an Unemployment Compensation Fund, which fund shall be administered by the Commissioner of Labor exclusively for the purposes of the Employment Security Law. This fund shall consist of (1) all contributions and payments in lieu of contributions collected under such law together with any interest thereon collected pursuant to sections 48-655 to 48-660.01, except as provided in subsection (b) of section 48-621, (2) interest earned upon any money in the fund, (3) any property or securities acquired through the use of money belonging to the fund, (4) all earnings of such property or securities, (5) all money credited to this state's account in the Unemployment Trust Fund pursuant to section 903 of the federal Social Security Act, as amended, and (6) all other money received for the fund from any other source. Any money in the Unemployment Compensation Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 47. Section 48-620, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

48-620. The provisions of sections 48-617 to 48-619, to the extent that they relate to the Unemployment Trust Fund, shall be operative only so

long as such Unemployment Trust Fund continues to exist and so long as the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States of America continues to maintain for this state a separate book account of all funds deposited therein by this state for benefit purposes, together with this state's proportionate share of the earnings of such Unemployment Trust Fund, from which no other state is permitted to make withdrawals. If and when such Unemployment Trust Fund ceases to exist or such separate book account is no longer maintained, all money, properties, or securities therein belonging to the Unemployment Compensation Fund of this state shall be transferred to the treasurer of the Unemployment Compensation Fund.

Any money in the Unemployment Trust Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. If advances to the Unemployment Trust Fund under Title XII of the federal Social Security Act are necessary, any interest required to be paid on such advances shall be paid in a timely manner and shall not be paid by this state, directly or indirectly, by an equivalent reduction in state unemployment taxes or otherwise, from amounts in the Unemployment Compensation Fund.

Sec. 48. Section 48-622.01, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

48-622.01. (1) There is hereby created in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund. All state unemployment insurance tax collected under sections 48-648 to 48-661, less refunds, shall be paid into the fund. Such money shall be held in trust for the sole and exclusive use of payment of unemployment insurance benefits. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act, except that interest earned on money in the fund shall be credited to the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund at the end of each calendar quarter.

(2) The commissioner shall have authority to determine when and in what amounts withdrawals from the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund for payment of benefits are necessary. Amounts withdrawn for payment of benefits shall be immediately forwarded to the Secretary of the Treasury of the United States of America to the credit of the state's account in the Unemployment Trust Fund, provisions of law in this state relating to the deposit, administration, release, or disbursement of money in the possession or custody of this state to the contrary notwithstanding.

(3) If and when the state unemployment insurance tax ceases to exist as determined by the Governor in consultation with the state advisory council, all money then in the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund less accrued interest shall be immediately transferred to the credit of the state's account in the Unemployment Trust Fund, provisions of law in this state relating to the deposit, administration, release, or disbursement of money in the possession or custody of this state to the contrary notwithstanding. The determination to eliminate the state unemployment insurance tax shall be based on the solvency of the state's account in the Unemployment Trust Fund and the need for training of Nebraska workers. Accrued interest in the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund shall be credited to the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund.

Sec. 49. Section 48-622.02, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

48-622.02. (1) There is hereby created in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. All money deposited or paid into the fund is hereby appropriated and made available to the commissioner. No expenditures shall be made from the fund without the written authorization of the Governor upon the recommendation of the commissioner. Any interest earned on money in the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund shall be deposited in ~~credited to~~ the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund.

(2) Money in the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund shall be used for (a) administrative costs of establishing, assessing, collecting, and maintaining state unemployment insurance tax liability and payments, (b) administrative costs of creating, maintaining, and dissolving the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund and the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund, (c) support of public and private job training programs designed to train, retrain, or upgrade work skills of existing Nebraska workers, and (d) payment of unemployment insurance benefits if solvency of the state's account

in the Unemployment Trust Fund and of the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund so require.

(3) There is hereby created within the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund a separate account to be known as the Administrative Costs Reserve Account. Money shall be allocated from the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund to the Administrative Costs Reserve Account in amounts sufficient to pay the anticipated administrative costs identified in subdivisions (2)(a) and (b) of this section. The administrative costs determined to be applicable to creation and operation of the State Unemployment Insurance Trust Fund and the Nebraska Training and Support Trust Fund shall be paid out of the Administrative Costs Reserve Account.

Sec. 50. Section 48-1707, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

48-1707. There is hereby created the Farm Labor Contractors Fund for purposes of enforcing the Farm Labor Contractors Act. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 51. Section 48-1810, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

48-1810. There is hereby created the Nebraska Amusement Ride Fund. All permit fees collected pursuant to the Nebraska Amusement Ride Act shall be remitted to placed by the State Treasurer in for credit to the fund and shall be used for the sole purpose of administering the provisions of the act. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 52. Section 48-2115, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

48-2115. There is hereby created the Contractor Registration Cash Fund to be administered by the department. The fund shall consist of such sums as are appropriated to it by the Legislature and any fees collected in the administration of the Contractor Registration Act. All funds collected shall be remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 53. Section 50-114.05, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

50-114.05. The Clerk of the Legislature Cash Fund is hereby created. The fund shall consist of funds received by the Clerk of the Legislature pursuant to sections 49-1480.01 and 49-1482. The fund shall be used by the Clerk of the Legislature to perform the duties required by sections 49-1480 to 49-1488.01. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 54. Section 50-437, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

50-437. There is hereby created the Nebraska Legislative Shared Information System Cash Fund, which fund shall consist of fees received from services provided by the Legislature. Any money in the ~~Nebraska Legislative Shared Information System Cash Fund~~ fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 55. Section 51-606, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

51-606. The antique farm machinery and equipment museum shall be established, operated, and maintained from the Antique Farm Machinery and Equipment Fund which is hereby created. Such fund shall consist of such sums as are contributed as gifts, grants, or bequests. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 56. Section 54-147, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

54-147. A uniform fee, to be fixed by the brand committee, of not to exceed sixty-five cents per head shall be charged for all cattle inspected in accordance with sections 54-134 to 54-169 or section 54-415 or inspected within the brand inspection area by court order or at the request of any bank, credit agency, or lending institution with a legal or financial interest in

such cattle. The inspection fee for court-ordered inspections shall be paid from the proceeds of the sale of such cattle if ordered by the court or by either party as the court directs. For other inspections, the person requesting the inspection of such cattle shall be held responsible for the inspection fee. If estray cattle are identified as a result of the inspection, such cattle shall be processed in the manner provided by section 54-415. The Nebraska Brand Inspection and Theft Prevention Fund is created. All fees collected by the brand committee shall be deposited in the state treasury in a fund to be known as the Nebraska Brand Inspection and Theft Prevention Fund remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund. All money in the fund, if and when appropriated by the Legislature, shall be used by the brand committee in the administration and enforcement of sections 54-134 to 54-169 and 54-415. Any unexpended balance that remains in the fund at the end of any biennium shall, when reappropriated by the Legislature, be available for the uses and purposes of the fund for the succeeding biennium. The fund shall be paid out only upon the proper vouchers approved by the brand committee upon warrants issued by the Director of Administrative Services and countersigned by the State Treasurer as provided by law. Any money in the Nebraska Brand Inspection and Theft Prevention Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 57. Section 54-857, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

54-857. All money received pursuant to the Commercial Feed Act shall be remitted by the director to the State Treasurer and by the State Treasurer credited for credit to the Commercial Feed Administration Cash Fund, which is hereby created. Such fund shall be used by the department to aid in defraying the expenses of administering the act. Any money in the Commercial Feed Administrative Fund on January 1, 1987, shall be transferred to the Commercial Feed Administration Cash Fund. Any money in the Commercial Feed Administration Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 58. Section 54-1173, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

54-1173. The license and permit fees collected as provided by sections 54-152 and 54-1157 to 54-1186 the Nebraska Livestock Auction Market Development Act and section 54-152 shall be an occupation tax, and shall be deposited in the state treasury, and by remitted to the State Treasurer placed in for credit to the Livestock Auction Market Fund. All money so collected shall be appropriated to the uses of the Department of Agriculture for the purpose of administering the provisions of sections 54-152 and 54-1157 to 54-1186, such act and section and shall be paid out only on vouchers approved by the director, and upon the warrant or warrants issued by the Director of Administrative Services. Any unexpended balance in such fund at the close of any biennium shall, when reappropriated, be available for the uses and purposes of the fund for the succeeding biennium; otherwise it shall lapse into the General Fund of the state. Any money in the Livestock Auction Market Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 59. Section 54-1371, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

54-1371. (1) Whenever brucellosis testing is performed under section 54-1370, or under section 54-1369 with respect to a sale at private treaty or under section 54-1370, the owner of the animals shall be responsible for gathering, confining, and restraining the animals to be tested, and shall provide the necessary facilities and assistance. With respect to tests conducted at markets, concentration points, or slaughter establishments, the responsibility shall be borne by the owner of the establishment.

(2) Any person failing to carry out the responsibilities set out under subsection (1) of this section shall be guilty of a Class IV misdemeanor.

(3) Whenever any person fails to carry out the responsibilities set out under subsection (1) of this section, the department shall perform such functions. Upon completion of the testing, the department shall determine its actual costs incurred in handling the livestock and conducting the testing, and notify the responsible person in writing. The responsible person shall reimburse the department its actual costs within fifteen days following the date of the notice. Any person failing to reimburse the department as required shall be assessed a penalty of up to twenty-five percent of the

amount due for each thirty days of delinquency.

(4) All money received by the department under subsection (3) of this section shall be deposited into remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Brucellosis Control Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. Expenditures from the Brucellosis Control Cash Fund fund may be made to conduct brucellosis testing under sections 54-1367 to 54-1384 the Nebraska Bovine Brucellosis Act. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 60. Section 54-2004, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

54-2004. All license fees collected as provided by section 54-2002 shall be deposited in the state treasury and by remitted to the State Treasurer placed in for credit to the Livestock Market Fund, which fund is hereby created. All money so collected shall be appropriated to the uses of the Department of Agriculture for the purpose of administering the Nebraska Livestock Market Act and shall be paid out only on vouchers approved by the director and upon the warrant or warrants issued by the Director of Administrative Services. Any unexpended balance in such fund at the close of any biennium shall, when reappropriated, be available for the uses and purposes of the fund for the succeeding biennium; otherwise it shall lapse into the General Fund. Any money in the Livestock Market Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 61. Section 55-131, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

55-131. The Adjutant General is hereby authorized to take by devise, gift, or otherwise, and hold, as trustee, for the benefit and use of the National Guard, or any part thereof, any property, real or personal; to invest and reinvest the same property; to collect, receive, and recover the rents, incomes, and issues therefrom; and from the property; and to expend the same them as provided by the terms of the devise or gift, or if not so provided, to expend the same them for the benefit and use of the National Guard as he in his or she in his or her discretion shall determine, subject to the approval of the Governor. All other money derived from any other source shall be deposited in the state treasury and by remitted to the State Treasurer credited for credit to the Military Department Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. Any money in the Military Department Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 62. Section 60-305.14, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

60-305.14. There is hereby created the Interstate Registration Operations Cash Fund. Such fund shall be used by the Department of Motor Vehicles to carry out all operations pursuant to the administration of titling and registering vehicles in interstate commerce. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 63. Section 60-1409, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

60-1409. The Nebraska Motor Vehicle Industry Licensing Fund is created. All fees collected under Chapter 60, article 14, shall be paid remitted by the board, as collected, into the state treasury. The to the State Treasurer shall enter and carry on his records all such collections in a separate fund to be designated as the Nebraska Motor Vehicle Industry Licensing Fund for credit to the fund. Such fund shall be appropriated by the Legislature for the operations of the Nebraska Motor Vehicle Industry Licensing Board; and shall be paid out from time to time by warrants of the Director of Administrative Services on the State Treasurer for authorized expenditures upon duly itemized vouchers executed as provided by law and approved by the chairman chairperson of the board or the executive secretary. The expenses of conducting the office must always be kept within the income collected and reported to the State Treasurer by such board. Such office and expense thereof shall not be supported or paid from the General Fund, and all money deposited in such fund the Nebraska Motor Vehicle Industry Licensing Fund shall be expended only for such office and expense thereof and, unless determined by the board, it shall not be required to expend any funds to any person or any other governmental agency. Any money in the Nebraska Motor

Vehicle Industry Licensing Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 and the fund the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. The Nebraska Motor Vehicle Industry Licensing Fund shall be audited annually by the Auditor of Public Accounts.

Sec. 64. Section 66-1224, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

66-1224. There is hereby created the Petroleum Products Administrative Fund. The State Treasurer shall credit to the fund an amount equal to seven cents for each one thousand gallons of motor fuel taxed under Chapter 66, articles 4 and 6. All amounts credited to the fund shall be used to aid in defraying the expenses of administering the Petroleum Products Act. Any unexpended balance in such fund at the close of any biennium shall, when reappropriated, be available for the uses and purposes of the fund for the succeeding biennium; otherwise, it shall lapse into the Highway Trust Fund. Any money in the Petroleum Products Administrative Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 65. Section 68-301, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

68-301. A fund to be known as the State Assistance Fund is created and established in the treasury of the State of Nebraska. Such fund shall consist of all money appropriated to it by the Legislature, allocated by the government of the United States, or donated or allocated from other sources. Any money in the State Assistance Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 66. Section 68-723, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

68-723. There is hereby created the Department of Social Services Cash Fund to be administered by the Department of Social Services. The fund shall consist of money received from contractual agreements, grants, fees, and donations. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 67. Section 69-1317, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

69-1317. (a)(1) All funds received under the Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act, including the proceeds from the sale of abandoned property under section 69-1316, shall be deposited by the State Treasurer in a separate trust fund from which he or she shall make prompt payment of claims allowed pursuant to the act. Before making the deposit he or she shall record the name and last-known address of each person appearing from the holders' reports to be entitled to the abandoned property, the name and last-known address of each insured person or annuitant, and with respect to each policy or contract listed in the report of a life insurance corporation, its number, the name of the corporation, and the amount due. The record shall be available for public inspection during business hours.

The record shall not be subject to public inspection or available for copying, reproduction, or scrutiny by commercial or professional locators of property presumed abandoned who charge any service or finders' fee until twenty-four months after the names from the holders' reports have been published or officially disclosed.

A professional finders' fee shall be limited to ten percent of the total amount of the property presumed abandoned. To claim any such fee, the nature and location of the property must be disclosed to the claimant by the finder.

(2) The unclaimed property records of the State Treasurer, the unclaimed property reports of holders, and the information derived by an unclaimed property examination or audit of the records of a person or otherwise obtained by or communicated to the State Treasurer may be withheld from the public. Any record or information that may be withheld under the laws of this state or of the United States when in the possession of such a person may be withheld when revealed or delivered to the State Treasurer. Any record or information that is withheld under any law of another state when in the possession of that other state may be withheld when revealed or delivered by the other state to the State Treasurer.

Information withheld from the general public concerning any aspect of unclaimed property shall only be disclosed to an apparent owner of the

property, or to the escheat, unclaimed, or abandoned property administrators or officials of another state if that other state accords substantially reciprocal privileges to the State Treasurer.

(b)(1) On or after October 6, 1992, the State Treasurer shall periodically transfer any balance in excess of an amount not to exceed five hundred thousand dollars from the separate trust fund to the General Fund no less frequently than on or before November 1 and May 1 of each year, except that the total amount of all such transfers shall not exceed five million dollars.

(2)(i) On the next succeeding November 1 after five million dollars has been transferred to the General Fund in the manner described in subdivision (b)(1) of this section or (ii) on November 1, 1996, whichever occurs first, and on or before November 1 of each year thereafter, the State Treasurer shall transfer any balance in excess of an amount not to exceed five hundred thousand dollars from the separate trust fund to the permanent school fund.

(c) Before making any deposit to the credit of the permanent school fund or the General Fund, the State Treasurer may deduce (1) any costs in connection with sale of abandoned property, (2) any costs of mailing and publication in connection with any abandoned property, and (3) reasonable service charges and place such funds in the Unclaimed Property Cash Fund which is hereby created. Any money in the Unclaimed Property Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 68. Section 71-1,206.13, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

71-1,206.13. The department shall receive and account for all money derived under sections 71-1,206.01 to 71-1,206.31. The department shall remit the money monthly to the State Treasurer for credit to the Psychologists Licensing Fund, which fund is hereby created. Money received in such fund shall be used by the department or the board with the department's approval.

The secretary of the board shall be bonded under the blanket surety bond required by section 11-201. The premium for this bond shall be paid out of the Psychologists Licensing Fund.

All reimbursement for expenses shall be paid only from the Psychologists Licensing Fund. No money shall be paid from the General Fund for expenses or liabilities incurred by the board, and such expenses or liabilities shall not constitute a charge on any state funds other than the Psychologists Licensing Fund.

Any money in the Psychologists Licensing Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 69. Section 71-1,237, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-1,237. The Respiratory Care Practitioners Fund is hereby created. All money in the fund shall be used exclusively by the Bureau of Examining Boards to carry out its statutory and regulatory duties pertaining to the practice of respiratory care. The State Treasurer shall credit to the Respiratory Care Practitioners Fund, on and after July 17, 1986, fund all license and renewal fees for the practice of respiratory care remitted to the state treasury State Treasurer by the department pursuant to section 71-162, except such amount distributed pursuant to sections 33-150 and 71-6228. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 70. Section 71-1,243, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-1,243. The Athletic Trainer Fund is hereby created. All money in the fund shall be used exclusively by the Bureau of Examining Boards to carry out the statutory and regulatory duties pertaining to the practice of athletic training. The State Treasurer shall credit to the Athletic Trainer Fund, on or after July 17, 1986, fund all certification and renewal fees for the practice of athletic training remitted to the state treasury State Treasurer by the department pursuant to section 71-162, except such amounts distributed pursuant to sections 33-150 and 71-6228. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 71. Section 71-1,283, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-1,283. The Massage Therapy Fund is hereby created. All money in the fund shall be used exclusively by the Bureau of Examining Boards to carry out the statutory and regulatory duties pertaining to the practice of massage therapy. The State Treasurer shall credit to the Massage Therapy Fund; on or after August 1, 1988; fund all certification and renewal fees for the practice of massage therapy remitted to the state treasury State Treasurer by the department pursuant to section 71-162 except such amounts distributed pursuant to sections 33-150 and 71-6228. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 72. Section 71-1,288, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-1,288. The Nutritionists Fund is hereby created. All money in the fund shall be used exclusively by the Bureau of Examining Boards to carry out the statutory and regulatory duties pertaining to the practice of dietetic and nutrition services. The State Treasurer shall credit to the Nutritionists Fund; on and after July 9, 1988; fund all certification and renewal fees for the practice of dietetic and nutrition services remitted to the state treasury by the department pursuant to section 71-162, except such amounts distributed pursuant to sections 33-150 and 71-6228. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 73. Section 71-222.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-222.02. All funds collected in the administration of sections 71-201 to 71-224 the Barber Act shall be transmitted as received remitted to the State Treasurer and by him deposited in the state treasury to the credit of for credit to the Board of Barber Examiners Fund which is hereby created and which shall be expended only for the administration of sections 71-201 to 71-237 the act. Any money in the Board of Barber Examiners Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 74. Section 71-381, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-381. There is hereby created the Cosmetology Cash Fund to receive all money collected from fees pursuant to the Nebraska Cosmetology Act. Expenditures may be made from the Cosmetology Cash Fund fund to administer the act including, but not limited to:

(1) Expenditures for staff, equipment, supplies, office space, communications, consultants and other professional services, staff travel, and other related expenses involved with the administration of the act and the regulation of cosmetology;

(2) Per diem, travel, and other related expenses for board members to enable them to perform their required functions;

(3) Expenses necessary to permit board members and staff members to attend national and regional meetings of organizations of state licensing boards. Each board member and professional staff member shall be permitted to attend at least one such meeting each year with expenses paid from the Cosmetology Cash Fund fund;

(4) Expenses for the conducting of examinations; and

(5) Any other expenses related to the administration of cosmetology licensure and practice approved by the board and the director.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 75. Section 71-2016, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-2016. The State Treasurer is hereby authorized to receive federal funds and transmit them to such applicants or to the department, if to carry out any survey, administration, or other authorized function. There is hereby established, separate and apart from all public money and funds of this state, a Hospital and Medical Facilities Fund. Money from the federal government for any authorized purpose of survey, planning, administration, or construction of approved projects, shall be received by the State Treasurer and deposited to the credit of this for credit to the fund. Warrants for all payments from the Hospital and Medical Facilities Fund fund shall be drawn and paid in the manner provided by law. Any money in the Hospital and Medical Facilities Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259

the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 76. Section 71-2201, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-2201. There is created a Maternal and Child Health and Public Health Work Fund in the treasury of the State of Nebraska, to be administered by the Director of Health of the State of Nebraska for maternal and child health and for public health work, as provided by law. Any money in the Maternal and Child Health and Public Health Work Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 77. Section 71-4718, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-4718. On or before the tenth day of each month, the department shall pay into the state treasury remit to the State Treasurer all money received by the department under sections 71-4701 to 71-4719 during the preceding calendar month. The State Treasurer shall credit the money to the Hearing Aid Fund which is hereby created. Such fund shall be expended solely for administering and enforcing the provisions of such sections. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 78. Section 71-4732, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-4732. There is hereby created a Commission for the Hearing Impaired Fund to consist of such funds as the Legislature shall appropriate and any funds received under section 71-4731. The fund shall be used to administer sections 71-4720 to 71-4732. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 79. Section 71-5661, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

71-5661. The financial incentives provided by the Rural Health Systems and Professional Incentive Act shall consist of (1) student loans to eligible students for attendance at an eligible school as determined pursuant to section 71-5662 and (2) the repayment by the state of qualified educational debts owed by eligible health professionals as determined pursuant to such section. Funds for such incentives shall be appropriated from the General Fund to the department for such purposes.

There is hereby created in the department the Rural Health Professional Incentive Fund into which payments received pursuant to section 71-5666 and appropriations from the General Fund shall be credited. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 80. Section 71-6116, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-6116. There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Occupational Therapy Licensing Cash Fund, from which shall be appropriated such amounts as are available and incident to the administration of the Occupational Therapy Practice Act. The fund shall contain all All fees and money collected by the board or the department under such act, which shall be paid into the state treasury and credited remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Occupational Therapy Licensing Cash Fund fund. Any money in the Occupational Therapy Licensing Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 81. Section 71-6228, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

71-6228. The Nebraska Regulation of Health Professions Fund is hereby created. All money in the fund shall be used exclusively for the operation and administration of the Nebraska Regulation of Health Professions Act. The State Treasurer shall credit to the fund five percent of all fees collected on or after July 1, 1984, and prior to March 18, 1988, pursuant to the licensing or regulation of regulated health professions and remitted to the state treasury State Treasurer by the Department of Health or any board or board of examiners of any regulated health profession. On and after March 18, 1988, the director shall annually determine the percent of all fees collected during that year pursuant to the licensing or regulation of regulated health

professions to be credited to the fund, except that such percentage shall not be greater than five percent. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 82. Section 71-7528, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, is amended to read:

71-7528. On and after July 1, 1998, the The department may (1) charge and receive fees, (2) accept third-party reimbursements or matching funds from any federal governmental agency, private corporation, or other public or private organization or entity, and (3) accept grants or donations from any public or private agency, organization, or entity for services provided by any region. Such funds shall be remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Nebraska Health Care Trust Fund, which fund is hereby created. Money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer as provided in sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 83. Section 72-202, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

72-202. The Board of Educational Lands and Funds shall notify the state investment officer of the funds derived from the sale of school lands. Any such funds and the interest therefrom shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. The board shall notify the state investment officer as to the amount of funds currently invested from the sale of school lands, and the state investment officer shall direct the reinvestment of such funds as may be required.

The board shall notify the state investment officer of the funds available from all bonds or notes issued by the government of the United States, or the State of Nebraska or any county, school district, or municipality therein that the board has purchased. The purchased bonds or notes shall be placed in the custody and control of the State Treasurer under the same conditions as other state money. The state investment officer shall manage the funds as follows: (1) When necessary to pay a premium for bonds for such funds, the amount of the premium shall be amortized over the term of the bonds from the interest received on such bonds; and (2) when bonds for such funds are purchased at a discount, the amount of the discount shall be used to purchase additional bonds.

Sec. 84. Section 72-232.07, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

72-232.07. The cost of administering unsold school lands shall include expenditures necessary for developing such school lands to their most productive use. All expenditures shall be directed by the board in exercising its responsibility as a trustee over the school land trust and shall not exceed twenty percent of all rental and bonus payments of the previous year, which amount shall be appropriated for each year to the board for payment of development and improvement costs completed and approved by the board upon contracts let for this purpose. All rental and bonus payment deductions as authorized by this section shall be deposited by the board into the state treasury and by remitted to the State Treasurer credited for credit to the Land Improvement Fund, which fund is hereby created, to be expended upon proper warrants in accordance with law. Any money in the Land Improvement Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 85. Section 74-1317, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

74-1317. In order to promote public safety at the intersection of railroad lines and all classes of highways, there is hereby created a special fund known as the Grade Crossing Protection Fund which shall be established in the state treasury to be used in furnishing financial assistance in the improvement of the safety of railroad grade crossings in this state, including the elimination of such crossings, the construction, substantial modification, or improvement, of and the maintenance of automatic crossing protection at such grade crossings, and the construction and maintenance of overpasses and underpasses at railroad crossings. Any money in the Grade Crossing Protection Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 86. Section 77-3,111, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

77-3,111. There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Miscellaneous Services Revolving Fund to which shall be credited all money received by the Department of Revenue for services performed and billed to other agencies or persons. All reimbursements to the department for such services shall be credited to the fund and expenditures therefrom shall be made only when such funds are available. The Department of Revenue shall only bill for the actual amount expended in performing such services.

Any money in the Miscellaneous Services Revolving Fund shall be administered by the Department of Revenue, and any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 87. Section 77-2365, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

77-2365. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Revenue-Sharing Trust Fund ~~in~~ to which shall be ~~deposited~~ credited all funds received by the state under the federal State and Local Fiscal Assistance Act of 1972, Public Law 92-512, or act successor thereto and to which shall be credited all earnings from the investment thereof. No expenditure shall be made from such fund except upon specific appropriation by the Legislature. Any such appropriation shall in all respects comply with the terms of the law and rules and regulations pursuant to which the federal government disburses such funds to the state. Any money in the Revenue-Sharing Trust Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 88. Section 79-340, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

79-340. (1) The State Department of Education may provide for a system of charges for services rendered by the administrative support programs of the State Department of Education department to all other programs within the agency department. Such charges received for administrative support services shall be credited to the State Department of Education Revolving Fund, which fund is hereby created. Expenditures shall be made from such fund to finance the operation of the administrative support programs of the State Department of Education department in accordance with appropriations made by the Legislature.

(2) The Director of Administrative Services, upon receipt of proper vouchers approved by the Commissioner of Education, shall issue warrants out of the State Department of Education Revolving Fund. Any money in the State Department of Education Revolving Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 89. Section 79-1345, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

79-1345. There is hereby established a State Department of Education Trust Fund which shall consist of all property, real or personal, acquired by donation, devise, or bequest by the Nebraska School for the Visually Handicapped, by the Nebraska School for the Deaf, or by any school for children with mental retardation which is exclusively owned by the State of Nebraska and under the control and supervision of the State Department of Education and all money derived from the sale or lease of property donated, devised, or bequeathed to any such school. Out of money in such fund not restricted from such use by the terms of the donation, devise, or bequest, there shall be established an emergency cash fund of not to exceed five hundred dollars for immediate and unusual needs as may arise. Such cash fund shall be reimbursed from the ~~trust fund~~ State Department of Education Trust Fund for any expenditures. Any money in the State Department of Education Trust Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. subject to the following exceptions: (1) No such investment need be made if, according to the terms of the donation, devise, or bequest, the State Board of Education is not limited to the expenditure of only the interest or income derived from the donation, devise, or bequest; and (2) no such investment shall be made if the will or instrument making such donation, devise, or bequest makes other provisions or directions as to investment and in such cases the state investment officer, acting for the State Board of Education, shall comply with the provisions or directions of such will or instrument if such provisions or directions are not inconsistent with the laws of this state.

Sec. 90. Section 79-1910.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska,

is amended to read:

79-1910.01. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Nebraska School for the Deaf Cash Fund which, when appropriated by the Legislature, shall be expended solely to aid in defraying the expenses of the school. All money received by the school, except any federal funds or trust funds, shall be deposited in credited to such fund. Any money in the Nebraska School for the Deaf Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 91. Section 79-2009.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

79-2009.01. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Nebraska School for the Visually Handicapped Cash Fund which, when appropriated by the Legislature, shall be expended solely to aid in defraying the expenses of the school. All money received by the school, except any federal funds or trust funds, shall be deposited in credited to such fund. Any money in the Nebraska School for the Visually Handicapped Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 92. Section 79-2107, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

79-2107. There is hereby created a fund to be known as the State Educational Telecommunications Fund to be used by the Nebraska Educational Telecommunications Commission for the purposes of carrying out the provisions of the Nebraska Educational Telecommunications Act. Such fund shall consist of such sums as the Legislature may appropriate. Any money in the State Educational Television Fund on July 10, 1984, shall be transferred to the State Educational Telecommunications Fund on such date. Any money in the State Educational Telecommunications Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 93. Section 79-3363, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

79-3363. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Diagnostic Resource Center Cash Fund which, when appropriated by the Legislature, shall be expended solely to aid in defraying the expenses of the center. All funds received by the center shall be deposited in credited to such fund. All money in the Diagnostic Resource Center Cash Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 94. Section 80-301.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

80-301.02. The Veterans' Home Building Fund is hereby created. The fund shall include money allocated to the fund. The fund shall be used, along with matching federal funds available, for the specific purposes of adding or improving nursing facilities when needed. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 95. Section 80-401, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

80-401. There is hereby established a fund to be known as the Nebraska Veterans' Aid Fund. The Board of Educational Lands and Funds is directed to purchase bonds or notes issued by the government of the United States or the State of Nebraska, or any county, school district, or municipality therein, with a face value of twelve million dollars, as of August 1, 1984, to carry out sections 80-401 to 80-405 and to place them in the custody and control of the State Treasurer of the State of Nebraska under the same conditions as other state money.

Such fund shall be managed as follows: (1) When necessary to pay a premium for bonds for such fund, the amount of the premium shall be amortized over the term of the bonds from the interest received on such bonds; and (2) when bonds for such fund are purchased at a discount, the amount of the discount shall be used to purchase additional bonds, it being contemplated that the face amount of the bonds in such fund may in this manner aggregate in excess of twelve million dollars at some future time. The interest on the Nebraska Veterans' Aid Fund, except so much as may be required for amortization of premium bond purchases as authorized in this section and so

much as may be required to pay a pro rata share of the budget appropriated for the Nebraska Investment Council pursuant to section 72-1249.02, shall be paid to the Veterans' Aid Income Fund, which fund is hereby created. The Veterans' Aid Income Fund, when appropriated by the Legislature, shall be available to the director for aid to needy veterans as authorized by law. The Board of Educational Lands and Funds shall manage the Nebraska Veterans' Aid Fund, except that after September 10, 1969, the investment and reinvestment of such fund shall be the duty of the state investment officer, with investment and reinvestment to be made in the same type securities authorized for investment of funds by sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. The director shall advise the council when amounts in the Veterans' Aid Income Fund are not immediately required for aid to needy veterans. The state investment officer shall invest such amounts available from the Veterans' Aid Income Fund in the same manner as investments of the Nebraska Veterans' Aid Fund, and the interest thereon shall also become a part of the Veterans' Aid Income Fund.

Sec. 96. Section 81-161.06, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-161.06. There is hereby created the State Surplus Property Revolving Fund. The fund shall be administered by the material division of the Department of Administrative Services. The fund shall consist of money collected from the sale of surplus property and fees from such sales and shall be used to reimburse the appropriate funds from the proceeds of such sales and pay for expenses incurred by the division for the sale of the property.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 97. Section 81-201.05, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-201.05. There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Weed and Insect Books Cash Fund. All money credited to the fund shall be used by the Department of Agriculture to aid in defraying the cost of publishing, preparing, and distributing the Nebraska Weed Book, the Nebraska Insect Book, and any supplemental inserts to such books. Any money in the Weed and Insect Books Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 98. Section 81-2,147.11, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2,147.11. There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Nebraska Seed Administrative Cash Fund. All money received pursuant to the Nebraska Seed Law shall be paid to the state treasury and credited by the State Treasurer remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to such fund. All money credited to the fund shall be used by the Department of Agriculture to aid in defraying the cost of administering such law. Any money in the Nebraska Seed Administrative Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 99. Section 81-2,162.27, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2,162.27. All money received under the Nebraska Commercial Fertilizer and Soil Conditioner Act shall be paid to the state treasury and credited by remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Fertilizers and Soil Conditioners Administrative Fund, which fund is hereby created. All money so received shall be appropriated to the uses of the department for defraying the expenses of administering the act. Any unexpended balance in such fund at the close of any biennium shall, when reappropriated, be available for the uses and purposes of the fund for the succeeding biennium. Any money in the Fertilizers and Soil Conditioners Administrative Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 100. Section 81-2,164.03, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2,164.03. The Director of Agriculture is hereby authorized to receive voluntary gifts and contributions from the federal government, private agencies, farm industry associations, and individuals or to collect fees or charges for services or publications from any source, including, but not limited to, the federal government, state governments, public agencies, and private entities or individuals for the purpose of defraying the expenses of carrying out subdivision (3) of section 81-201 and sections 81-2,163 to

81-2,164.03. All advances so received shall be credited to the Agricultural Products Marketing Information Cash Fund, which fund is hereby created. Disbursements from such fund shall be made upon vouchers approved by the director and warrants issued thereon as provided by law. All money received from the federal government, local government agencies, private research agencies, farm industry associations, or individuals, which are reimbursements for expenditures made, shall be deposited in the state treasury and by remitted to the State Treasurer for credit credited to the Agricultural Products Marketing Information Cash Fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269. Any money in the Agricultural Products Marketing Information Fund shall, on July 17, 1986, be transferred to the Agricultural Products Marketing Information Cash Fund the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 101. Section 81-2,174, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2,174. Upon issuing a certificate to a beekeeper after an inspection as provided in sections 81-2,172 and 81-2,173, the department shall collect therefor a certificate fee as set forth in rules and regulations adopted and promulgated pursuant to the Nebraska Apiary Act not to exceed the following amounts: Two hundred dollars for the inspection of two hundred fifty colonies or less; two hundred fifty dollars for the inspection of two hundred fifty-one through five hundred colonies; three hundred fifty dollars for the inspection of five hundred one through one thousand colonies; and four hundred fifty dollars for the inspection of more than one thousand colonies. The certification fee shall be paid prior to the issuance of certificates by the department. Beekeepers failing to notify the department of their intent to sell or ship bees prior to July 1 shall also be liable to charges for the expenses of a special trip by the officers or employees of the department as provided in section 81-2,173. All fees shall be remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the State Apiary Cash Fund which is hereby created. Any money in the State Apiary Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 102. Section 81-2,237, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2,237. There is hereby created the Animal Damage Control Cash Fund. Such fund shall be administered by the Department of Agriculture. The fund shall consist of funds received from any source to carry out the animal damage control program pursuant to section 81-2,236. Any money in the Animal Damage Control Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 103. Section 81-815.30, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-815.30. The commission may establish and collect reasonable fees for the use of state park-operated facilities of a personal-service nature, such as cabins, camps, swimming facilities, boats, and other equipment or services of a similar nature. The ~~and~~ and the commission, in its sole discretion, may grant concessions in state park areas for the provisions of certain appropriate services to the public, may and grant permits for certain land or other resource utilization commensurate with the purposes of sections 81-815.21 to 81-815.33, and may prescribe and collect appropriate fees or rentals therefor.

The proceeds of all such fees, rentals, or other revenue from operated facilities, concessions, or permits shall be deposited in credited to the State Park Cash Revolving Fund, which fund is hereby created in the state treasury, and shall be used by the commission solely for the improvement, maintenance, and operation of the state parks. Any money in the State Park Cash Revolving Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 104. Section 81-815.45, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-815.45. (1) All funds obtained from the sale of tourist promotion items shall be deposited in the state treasury to the credit of remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Tourist Promotion Fund, which is hereby established. The Department of Economic Development shall make expenditures from such fund to promote and develop the tourist potential of this state. Any money in the Tourist Promotion Fund fund available for

investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(2) The Director of Economic Development shall allow the curator of the Aerospace Museum in Bellevue, Nebraska, to retain a sum of money not to exceed one thousand dollars to be used as a change cash fund by such curator. The curator shall make an accounting of such money each month to the Director of Economic Development.

Sec. 105. Section 81-815.51, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-815.51. (1) There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Youth Conservation Corps Fund.

(2) All money made available to the Youth Conservation Corps Fund under the provisions of the federal Youth Conservation Corps Act, as amended, and all money made available for matching purposes by state appropriations shall be remitted to the State Treasurer and placed by him in for credit to such fund.

(3) Youth Conservation Corps Fund money Money in the fund shall be used by the Game and Parks Commission pursuant to the federal Youth Conservation Corps Act, as amended, and also Public Law 93-408, 93rd Congress, for financing project costs thereunder.

(4) The Game and Parks Commission commission may make grants-in-aid to political subdivisions of this state from money available in the Youth Conservation Corps Fund upon such terms and in such amounts as the Game and Parks Commission shall determine commission determines.

(5) Any money in the Youth Conservation Corps Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 106. Section 81-815.52, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-815.52. There is hereby created in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Niobrara State Park Fund. The State Treasurer shall disburse the money in such fund to the Game and Parks Commission to be used exclusively by such commission to acquire real estate and provide necessary facilities in order to establish a state park in the vicinity of the real estate known as Niobrara State Park. Any money in the Niobrara State Park Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 107. Section 81-829.42, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-829.42. (1) While appropriations are adequate to meet the normal needs, the Legislature recognizes the necessity for anticipating and making advance provision to care for the unusual and extraordinary burdens imposed on the state and its political subdivisions by disasters or a civil defense emergency as defined in section 81-829.39. To meet such situations, it is the intention of the Legislature to confer emergency powers on the Governor, acting through the Adjutant General and the state Civil Defense Agency, and vesting vest him or her with adequate power and authority within the limitation of available funds in the Governor's Emergency Fund to meet any such emergency or disaster.

(2) There is hereby established a fund to be known as the Governor's Emergency Fund. It shall be expended, upon direction of the Governor, for any state of emergency. The emergency declaration shall set forth the emergency and shall state that it requires the expenditure of public funds to furnish immediate aid and relief. The Adjutant General shall administer such fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(3) It is the legislative intent that the first recourse shall be to funds regularly appropriated to state and local agencies. If the Governor finds that the demands placed upon these funds are unreasonably great, he or she may make funds available from the Governor's Emergency Fund. Expenditures may be made upon direction of the Governor for any or all of the civil defense functions as defined in section 81-829.39 or to meet the intent of the state disaster plans as outlined in section 81-829.41. Expenditures may also be made to state and federal agencies to meet the matching requirement of any applicable assistance programs.

(4) Assistance shall be provided from the Governor's Emergency Fund to political subdivisions of this state which have suffered from a disaster to such an extent as to impose a severe financial burden exceeding the ordinary

capacity of the subdivision affected. Applications for aid under this section shall be made to the state Civil Defense Agency on such forms as shall be prescribed and furnished by the agency and which shall require the furnishing of sufficient information to determine eligibility for aid and the extent of the financial burden incurred. The agency may call upon other agencies of the state in evaluating such applications. The Adjutant General shall review each application for aid under this section and recommend its approval or disapproval, in whole or in part, to the Governor. If the Governor approves, he or she shall determine and certify to the Adjutant General the amount of aid to be furnished. The Adjutant General shall thereupon issue his or her voucher to the Director of Administrative Services who shall issue his or her warrants therefor to the applicant.

(5) When a disaster emergency has been proclaimed by the Governor, or in the event of a civil defense emergency, the Adjutant General, upon order of the Governor, shall have authority to expend funds to meet but not be limited to the following situations:

(a) The purposes of the Nebraska Disaster and Civil Defense Act of 1973, to include civil defense functions as defined in section 81-829.39 and the responsibilities of the Governor and the state Civil Defense Agency as outlined in sections 81-829.40 and 81-829.41;

(b) Employing for the duration of the emergency additional personnel and contracting or otherwise procuring all necessary appliances, supplies, and equipment;

(c) Performing services for and furnishing materials and supplies to state government agencies, counties, and municipalities with respect to performance of any duties enjoined by law upon such agencies, counties, and municipalities which they are unable to perform because of extreme climatic phenomena, and receiving reimbursement in whole or in part from such agencies, counties, and municipalities able to pay therefor under such terms and conditions as may be agreed upon by the Adjutant General and any such agency, county, or municipality;

(d) Performing services for and furnishing materials to any individual in connection with alleviating hardship and distress growing out of extreme climatic phenomena, and receiving reimbursement in whole or in part from such individual under such terms as may be agreed upon by the Adjutant General and such individual;

(e) Performing services to counties and municipalities with respect to quelling riots and civil disturbances;

(f) Opening up, repairing, and ~~restoration of~~ restoring roads and highways;

(g) Repairing and ~~restoration of~~ restoring bridges;

(h) Furnishing transportation for supplies to alleviate suffering and distress;

(i) ~~Restoration of~~ Restoring means of communication;

(j) Furnishing medical services and supplies to prevent the spread of disease and epidemics;

(k) Quelling riots and civil disturbances;

(l) Training of individuals or governmental agencies for the purpose of perfecting the performance of emergency assistance duties as defined in the state disaster plans;

(m) Procurement and storage of special emergency supplies or equipment, determined by the Adjutant General as required to provide rapid response by state government to assist counties and municipalities in impending or actual emergencies;

(n) Clearing or removing, from publicly or privately owned land or water, debris and wreckage which may threaten public health or safety; and

(o) Such other measures as are customarily necessary to furnish adequate relief in cases of catastrophe or disaster.

(6) The Governor may receive such voluntary contributions as may be made from any source to aid in carrying out the purposes of this section and shall credit the same to the Governor's Emergency Fund.

(7) All obligations and expenses incurred by the Governor in the exercise of the powers and duties vested in the Governor by this section shall be paid by the State Treasurer out of available funds in the Governor's Emergency Fund, and the Director of Administrative Services shall draw his or her warrants upon the State Treasurer for the payment of such sum, or so much thereof as may be required, upon receipt by him or her of proper vouchers duly approved by the Adjutant General.

(8) This section shall be liberally construed in order to accomplish the purposes of the Nebraska Disaster and Civil Defense Act of 1973 and to permit the Governor to adequately cope with any emergency which may arise, and the powers vested in the Governor by this section shall be construed as being

in addition to all other powers presently vested in him or her and not in derogation of any existing powers.

(9) Such funds as may be made available by the government of the United States for the purpose of alleviating distress from disasters may be accepted by the State Treasurer and shall be credited to the Governor's Emergency Fund unless otherwise specifically provided in the act of Congress making such funds available.

Sec. 108. Section 81-845, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-845. The secretary of the Board of Examiners for Professional Engineers and Architects shall receive and account for all money derived from the operation of sections 81-839 to 81-856, and shall pay them remitted such money to the State Treasurer, who shall keep such money in for credit to a separate fund to be known as the Professional Engineering and Architectural Examiners' Fund. Such fund, which shall be continued from year to year and shall be drawn against only for the purpose of said such sections as herein provided and, when reappropriated for the succeeding biennium, shall not revert to the General Fund. All expenses certified by the board as properly and necessarily incurred in the discharge of duties, including authorized compensation and clerical help, and any expense incident to the administration of said such sections relating to other states, shall be paid out of said fund the Professional Engineering and Architectural Examiners' Fund. Warrants for the payment of expenses shall be issued by the Director of Administrative Services and paid by the State Treasurer upon presentation of vouchers regularly drawn by the chairman chairperson and secretary of the board and approved by the Director of Administrative Services. At PROVIDED; that at no time shall the total amount of warrants exceed the total amount of the fees collected under said such sections and to the credit of said the fund. Any money in the Professional Engineering and Architectural Examiners' Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 109. Section 81-8,107, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-8,107. In order to provide the necessary funds for the agencies or divisions of the state, which receive funds from the government of the United States under laws or regulations of the United States requiring the maintenance of a merit system or personnel plan for such agencies or divisions, to maintain a merit system or personnel plan as a condition for receiving federal funds, and to permit the Division of Safety of the Department of Labor to maintain a merit system, there is hereby established the Joint Merit System Revolving Fund. There is hereby appropriated from the General Fund of the state, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of ten thousand dollars, and the same shall be credited to such revolving fund. Disbursements from such fund shall be made upon vouchers approved by the director, and warrants issued thereon as provided by law. At the end of each three-months three-month period or other period arrived at by agreement, the fund shall be reimbursed by each of the participating agencies or divisions of the state for its share of the expense of administration of the merit system. The funds when collected, shall be remitted to the State Treasurer to reimburse and replenish the Joint Merit System Revolving Fund fund. Such agencies or divisions of the state that are required to use a merit system as a condition to receiving federal funds and the Division of Safety of the Department of Labor are hereby authorized to pay such expense out of such funds as are appropriated for their maintenance. A formula for determining the share of each agency or division of the state shall be prepared by the Joint Merit System Council until such time as the powers, authority, and jurisdiction of the Joint Merit System Council are transferred to the State Personnel Board in accordance with section 81-8,106. Any money in the Joint Merit System Revolving Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 110. Section 81-8,110.07, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-8,110.07. The secretary of the examining board shall receive and account for all money derived from the operation of sections 81-8,108 to 81-8,127 and shall remit it to the State Treasurer for credit to the Land Surveyor Examiner's Fund, which fund is hereby created. This fund shall be continued from year to year. When appropriated by the Legislature, this fund shall be expended only for the purposes of sections 81-8,108 to 81-8,127. When not reappropriated for the succeeding biennium, the money in this fund

shall not revert to the General Fund. The fund shall be paid out only upon vouchers approved by the examining board and upon warrants issued by the Director of Administrative Services and countersigned by the State Treasurer. The expenditures of the examining board shall be kept within the income collected and deposited with remitted to the State Treasurer by the examining board. Any money in the ~~and Surveyor Examiner's Fund~~ fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 111. Section 81-8,225, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-8,225. There is hereby established in the state treasury a Tort Claims Fund from which all awards or judgments under the State Tort Claims Act shall be paid. This fund shall be in such amount as the Legislature determines to be reasonably sufficient to meet anticipated claims. When the amount of money in the ~~Tort Claims Fund~~ fund is not sufficient to pay any awards or judgments under such act, the Risk Manager shall immediately advise the Legislature and request an emergency appropriation to satisfy such awards and judgments. Any money in the ~~Tort Claims Fund~~ fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 112. Section 81-8,239.03, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-8,239.03. The Risk Manager shall present a budget request as provided in section 81-1113 for the Risk Management Program which shall separately state the amount requested for the Tort Claims Fund, State Insurance Fund, State Self-Insured Property Fund, State Self-Insured Indemnification and Liability Fund, and Workers' Compensation Claims Revolving Fund, and such budget shall be based on the projected needs for such funds. If the Risk Manager does not assess state agencies for any of the funds listed in this section, the amount of expenditures paid from the fund on behalf of any non-general-fund agency shall be separately stated and paid into the funds from an appropriation to such non-general-fund agency. If the amount of money in any of such funds is not sufficient to pay any awards or judgments authorized by sections 48-192 to 48-1,109 or the State Tort Claims Act, the Risk Manager shall immediately advise the Legislature and request an emergency appropriation to satisfy such awards and judgments. Any money in such funds available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 113. Section 81-8,239.09, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-8,239.09. There is hereby created the Risk Management Administration Cash Fund. The fund shall be administered by the Risk Manager. The fund shall consist of miscellaneous fees for services provided by the Risk Manager and shall be used to pay for expenses of the risk management and state claims program.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 114. Section 81-8,260.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-8,260.02. There is hereby created the Commission on the Status of Women Cash Fund to be administered by the Nebraska Commission on the Status of Women. The fund shall consist of money received from contractual agreements, grants, fees, and donations. The fund shall be used to carry out the duties and purposes of the commission as provided in sections 81-8,255 to 81-8,260.01.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 115. Section 81-912, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-912. There is hereby established in the Department of Correctional Services a revolving fund to be known as the Federal Surplus Property Fund. The Director of Administrative Services, upon receipt of proper vouchers approved by the Department of Correctional Services, shall issue ~~his or her~~ warrants out of the Federal Surplus Property Fund for the purpose of administering the program and for purchasing, packing, handling, and transportation of equipment from the federal government as provided by section 81-914, but never in excess of the amount specifically appropriated.

All receipts for purchasing, packing, handling, and transportation of such equipment shall be ~~paid~~ remitted to the State Treasurer ~~and credited for credit~~ to the Federal Surplus Property Fund. Any money in the Federal Surplus Property Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 116. Section 81-1108.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1108.02. There is hereby created the Department of Administrative Services Revolving Fund. The fund shall be administered by the Department of Administrative Services. The fund shall consist of assessments against each division within the department and miscellaneous fees for services provided by the department. The money in the fund shall be used to defray the administrative expenses incurred by the department.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~

Sec. 117. Section 81-1108.24, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1108.24. There is hereby created, for the use of the Department of Administrative Services, a fund to be known as the State Emergency Capital Construction Contingency Fund, to consist of such money as shall be appropriated to such fund by the Legislature. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 118. Section 81-1117, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1117. (1) As used in this section, unless the context otherwise requires, machine data processing shall include, but not be limited to, use of the following:

(a) Mainframe computers, minicomputers, microprocessors, word processors, and desktop computers;

(b) Any peripheral device to be used with the equipment listed in subdivision (1)(a) of this section for such purposes as data input and output, data storage, or data communications;

(c) Any code or program to control the operation of the equipment or devices listed in subdivision (1)(a) or (1)(b) of this section; and

(d) Employment of professional data processing expertise for computer system design or program development.

(2) Subject to review and approval by the Director of Administrative Services, the data processing administrator shall have the following powers, duties, and responsibilities:

(a) He or she ~~shall be empowered to may~~ review the accounting and other records and reporting systems of all divisions within the Department of Administrative Services and within every other department and agency of the state;

(b) He or she shall systematically review the potential application of machine data processing to any work performed outside the central data processing service division, or by any department or agency of the state, or any subdivision of any department or agency of the state, and if he or she ~~shall find~~ finds that the costs of mechanizing such work will not exceed present costs or that efficiencies may be achieved, he or she may accept responsibility for the performance of such work. He or she shall also review current computer applications to determine if revision or deletion of computer applications would be beneficial. The findings of reviews made pursuant to this subdivision shall be reported to the Governor and the Legislative Fiscal Analyst;

(c) He or she ~~shall may~~, with the approval of the director, be empowered to make such revisions to internal systems for production of accounting and other reports as may be necessary to permit economical undertaking of work to be performed by the central data processing service division for any agency or department of the state;

(d) He or she shall organize the data processing division to provide system review, system design, feasibility studies, machine reviews, and long-range planning and management services;

(e) He or she ~~shall be authorized to may~~ review the operations of machine data processing installations as may exist in any department or agency of the state and ~~shall be empowered to may~~ cause such operations to be merged with those of the central data processing service division in the event that a cost analysis shows that economic advantage may be achieved. He or she ~~shall~~

have authority to may permit the establishment of departmental or agency data processing machine operations in any department or agency of the state if his or her analysis of feasibility shall show shows a potential economy or a substantial convenience for the state incident to such separate establishment. No state agency shall hire, purchase, lease, or rent any machine data processing item listed in subsection (1) of this section without the written approval of the central data processing administrator. All new computer programs developed or acquired for use with machine data processing equipment of any state agency shall be documented according to standards developed or approved by the central data processing administrator;

(f) He or she shall prepare a budget in sufficient time in advance of the statutory date for submittal of budget requests by departments and agencies of the state as to permit each department and agency for which services are performed, or are to be performed during the request budget period, to be informed of the cost of maintaining the current fiscal year's production work for inclusion within their respective budget requests;

(g) He or she shall provide for a system of charges for services rendered by the central data processing service division of the Department of Administrative Services to any other department or agency of the state when these charges are allocable to a particular project carried on by such department or division. Such standard rate charges shall, as nearly as may be practical, reflect the actual costs incurred in the performance of services for such department or agency. Such system of charges shall be annually reviewed by the Legislature's Committee on Appropriations. Rates planned for the coming fiscal year shall be included in the instructions for completion of budget request forms as annually prepared by the Department of Administrative Services budget division. If rate revisions are required during the fiscal year to reflect changes in the division's operating costs, these revisions shall be announced to state agencies at least thirty days prior to their use in billing these agencies for service. Miscellaneous supplies shall be billed to using agencies at actual cost. Equipment used primarily by one agency for special applications shall be billed to that agency at actual cost. In the event of saturation of the central data processing service division with the resulting need for contractual support to be furnished by another data processing installation, agencies shall be billed at actual cost. The charges received by the department for data processing services shall be credited to a fund hereby created which shall be known as the Data Processing Revolving Fund. Expenditures shall be made from such fund to finance the operations of the data processing service division in accordance with appropriations made by the Legislature. Any money in the Data Processing Revolving Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act;

(h) He or she may provide data processing services and technical assistance to any subdivision of government as provided for under the Interlocal Cooperation Act;

(i) He or she shall provide for the centralization of all administrative work, including that of educational institutions, into the central data processing service division;

(j) He or she shall provide definitions of standards and common data elements, coordinate the collection of data, consolidate data files or data banks, and review and approve or disapprove the establishment of separate data banks; and

(k) He or she shall maintain a current inventory of all data processing equipment and system applications, as well as indicators of utilization.

Each member of the Legislature shall receive a copy of the report required by subdivision (2)(b) of this section by making a request for it to the administrator.

Sec. 119. Section 81-1120, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1120. There is hereby created the Materiel Division Revolving Fund. The fund shall be administered by the materiel division of the Department of Administrative Services. The fund shall consist of fees paid for printing, copying, central supply, and mailing services provided to state agencies and local subdivisions by the division and shall be used to pay for expenses incurred by the division to provide such services.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 120. Section 81-1120.22, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1120.22. The Director of Communications shall develop a system of equitable billings and charges for communications services provided in any consolidated or joint-use system of communications. Such system of charges shall reflect, as nearly as may be practical, the actual share of costs incurred on behalf of or for services to each department, agency, or political subdivision provided services from the communications system. Using agencies shall pay for such services out of appropriated or available funds. All payments shall be deposited ~~in~~ credited to the Communications Cash Fund. Any money in the ~~Communications Cash Fund fund~~ available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. All collections for payment of telephone expenses shall be placed ~~in~~ credited to the Telephone Expense Revolving Fund which is hereby created. Expenditures shall be made from the Telephone Expense Revolving Fund for the payment of telephone expenses subject to appropriations by the Legislature. Such payment shall be made by the Director of Communications.

Sec. 121. Section 81-1120.40, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1120.40. There is hereby created the Intergovernmental Data Services Revolving Fund. The fund shall be administered by the intergovernmental data services division of the Department of Administrative Services. The fund shall consist of fees paid for services provided to state agencies, political subdivisions, or other governmental or private entities by the division and shall be used to pay for expenses incurred by the division.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 122. Section 81-1201.22, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1201.22. (1) There is hereby created the Administrative Cash Fund to be administered by the department. Revenue from the following sources shall be remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund:

- (a) Fees charged for the sale of department publications or subscription to publications;
- (b) Fees charged for the sale of Nebraska items promoting economic development of the state, including travel and tourism;
- (c) Deposits charged for the temporary use of Nebraska items promoting economic development of the state, including travel and tourism;
- (d) Fees charged for attendance and participation in department-sponsored conferences, training sessions, and other special events;
- (e) Money collected from nondepartment sources in connection with cooperative funding of advertising, marketing, promotional, or consulting activities; and
- (f) Money received by the department in the form of gifts, grants, reimbursements, or appropriations from any source intended to be used by the department for carrying out the provisions of Chapter 81, article 12.

(2) Revenue from the fund may be expended for the following purposes:

- (a) Production and distribution costs of department publications;
- (b) Purchase of items promoting economic development of the state, including travel and tourism, intended for sale;
- (c) Reimbursement of deposits collected for the temporary use of promotional items;
- (d) Payment of costs in connection with department-sponsored conferences, training sessions, and other special events;
- (e) Payment of costs of advertising, marketing, promotional, or consulting activities in cooperative funding partnerships with nondepartment organizations; and
- (f) Payment of costs for which fund revenue has been received and which are related to department activities in Chapter 81, article 12.

(3) Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 123. Section 81-1354.03, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1354.03. There is hereby created the Training Revolving Fund to be administered by the personnel division of the Department of Administrative Services. All funds received by the personnel division for employee training programs shall be remitted by the personnel division to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to

72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 124. Section 81-1354.04, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1354.04. There is hereby created the Temporary Employee Pool Revolving Fund. The fund shall be administered by the personnel division of the Department of Administrative Services. The fund shall consist of fees paid for services provided to state agencies by the division in providing temporary employees. The fund shall be used to pay for expenses incurred by the division in providing temporary employees.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~

Sec. 125. Section 81-1354.05, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1354.05. There is hereby created the Personnel Division Cash Fund. The fund shall consist of payments made by individuals eligible for program benefits and interest earnings as directed by the Legislature. The fund shall be used by the personnel division of the Department of Administrative Services to administer the provisions of the federal Public Health Service Act and administer the flexible spending benefit account.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~

Sec. 126. Section 81-1414.04, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1414.04. There is hereby created, for the use of the Nebraska Commission on Law Enforcement and Criminal Justice, a fund to be known as the Nebraska Law Enforcement Training Center Fund, to consist of such money as appropriated to such fund by the Legislature. Any money in the ~~Nebraska Law Enforcement Training Center Fund~~ fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~the provisions of Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~

Sec. 127. Section 81-15,103, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-15,103. (1) For licensed activities involving disposal of low-level radioactive waste, the council shall adopt and promulgate rules and regulations which require a licensee to provide an adequate surety or other financial arrangement sufficient to accomplish any necessary corrective action or cleanup on real or personal property caused by releases of radiation from a disposal site during the operational life of the facility and to comply with the requirements for decontamination, decommissioning, site closure, and stabilization of sites, and structures and equipment used in conjunction with such licensed activity, in the event the licensee abandons the facility or defaults for any reason in performing its operational or other such requirements. Any arrangement which constitutes self-insurance shall not be allowed. In addition to the surety requirements, the licensee shall purchase property and third-party liability insurance and pay the necessary periodic premiums at all times in such amounts as determined by the council pursuant to rules and regulations adopted and promulgated pursuant to the Low-Level Radioactive Waste Disposal Act.

(2) All sureties required pursuant to subsection (1) of this section which are forfeited shall be paid to the department ~~for deposit by and remitted to the State Treasurer in a special fund called for credit to the Radiation Site Closure and Reclamation Fund,~~ which is hereby created. Any money in the fund may be expended by the department as necessary to complete the requirements on which licensees have defaulted. Money in this fund shall not be used for normal operating expenses of the department. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~

(3) For licensed activities involving the disposal of low-level radioactive waste, the council shall adopt and promulgate rules and regulations which require a licensee, before termination of the license, to make available such funding arrangements as may be necessary to provide for custodial care.

(4) All funds collected from licensees pursuant to subsection (3) of this section and subsection (1) of section 81-15,101 shall be paid to the department ~~for deposit by and remitted to the State Treasurer in a special fund called for credit to the Radiation Custodial Care Fund,~~ which is hereby created. All interest accrued on money deposited in the fund may be expended

by the department for the continuing custodial care, maintenance, and other care of facilities from which such funds are collected as necessary for protection of the public health, safety, and environment. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(5) The department may, by contract, agreement, lease, or license with the Department of Health, provide for the decontamination, closure, decommissioning, reclamation, surveillance, or other care of a site subject to this section as needed to carry out the purposes of this section.

Sec. 128. Section 81-15,143, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-15,143. All fees collected pursuant to the Wastewater Treatment Operator Certification Act shall be ~~deposited in~~ remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the Wastewater Treatment Operator Certification Cash Fund, which is hereby created. Such fund shall be administered by the department for the purposes of the act. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 129. Section 81-15,161.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-15,161.01. (1) There is hereby created the Scrap Tire Reduction and Recycling Incentive Fund to be administered by the department. The fund shall consist of the proceeds from the fees imposed pursuant to section 81-15,162.01 and, before July 1, 1999, proceeds from the fees imposed pursuant to section 81-15,162 and from loan repayments under section 81-15,162.05. The department may receive gifts, bequests, and any other contributions for credit to the fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

(2) Money in the fund may be used for the development of a statewide program to facilitate the elimination of health and safety hazards caused by scrap tires and collection sites, including, but not limited to: Collection site abatement; the collection, management, and ~~clean-up~~ cleanup of scrap tires; regulation of permitted tire processors, tire collectors, collection sites, and tire haulers; research and studies to determine the technical and economic feasibility of uses of tire-derived products and to promote the production of such products; market development of tire-derived products, including planning and technical assistance; public education on scrap tire management; and grants and loans to achieve these goals. It is not the intent of the Legislature that the state bear the responsibility to achieve these goals, but it is the intent of the Legislature that the state provide assistance, financial and otherwise, to political subdivisions and other entities, public, private, and nonprofit, to enable them to achieve these goals.

Sec. 130. Section 81-15,183, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-15,183. There is hereby created the Remedial Action Plan Monitoring Fund which shall be administered by the Department of Environmental Quality. The fund shall be used by the department to:

(1) Receive funds voluntarily paid by public and private entities to finance department administration and oversight of remedial action plans for land pollution or water pollution;

(2) Provide funds for the department to offset expenses incurred in monitoring remedial action plans for land pollution or water pollution as voluntarily submitted by public and private entities; and

(3) Receive a one-time General Fund appropriation in an amount not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars for costs associated with the implementation of the Remedial Action Plan Monitoring Act.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 131. Section 81-1635, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1635. There is hereby established in the state treasury a fund, to be known as the Nebraska Energy Settlement Fund and referred to in sections 81-1635 to 81-1641 as the fund, to be administered by the State Energy Office as the representative of the Governor. The fund shall consist of (1) money received by the State of Nebraska after February 15, 1986, from awards or allocations to the State of Nebraska on behalf of consumers of petroleum products as a result of judgments or settlements for overcharges to consumers

of petroleum products sold during the period of time in which federal price controls on such products were in effect and (2) any investment interest earned on the fund. The Department of Administrative Services may for accounting purposes create subfunds of the fund to segregate awards or allocations received pursuant to different orders or settlements. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.~~ No money shall be transferred or disbursed from the fund except pursuant to sections 81-1635 to 81-1641.

Sec. 132. Section 81-1835, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-1835. There is hereby established in the state treasury a Victim's Compensation Fund from which all awards or judgments under the Nebraska Crime Victim's Reparations Act shall be paid. This fund shall include deposits pursuant to sections 29-2286, 81-1836, and 83-183.01 and shall be in such amount as the Legislature shall determine to be reasonably sufficient to meet anticipated claims. When the amount of money in the Victim's Compensation Fund fund is not sufficient to pay any awards or judgments under the act, the Director of Administrative Services shall immediately advise the Legislature and request an emergency appropriation to satisfy such awards and judgments. Any money in the Victim's Compensation Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 133. Section 81-2004, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2004. The Nebraska State Patrol, its subordinate officers such as lieutenant colonel, majors, captains, lieutenants, sergeants, corporals, patrolmen, and other employees shall be used primarily for the enforcement of the traffic and motor vehicle laws of the State of Nebraska and the handling of traffic within the state, except:

(1) The Superintendent of Law Enforcement and Public Safety, 7 PROVIDED; the superintendent, with the approval of the Governor, may designate such personnel of the Nebraska State Patrol to qualify and act as his or her deputies or investigators to assist him or her in the enforcement of the laws of the state relating to felonies, and the superintendent shall designate and train fifteen investigators in addition to those authorized on September 2, 1973, to assist in such law enforcement; and

(2) THE AND PROVIDED FURTHER, the superintendent shall designate and train ten special investigators in addition to those authorized on July 12, 1974, to assist him or her and all other law enforcement agencies in this state with enforcement of drug control legislation. As an aid to such special investigators, the superintendent shall appoint two stenographers and one laboratory technician in addition to those authorized on September 2, 1973.

There is hereby created in the state treasury a cash fund to be known as the Nebraska State Patrol Criminal Investigation Cash Fund which shall be used for the enforcement of any state law relating to felonies. Any money in the Nebraska State Patrol Criminal Investigation Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 134. Section 81-2004.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2004.02. There is hereby created the Nebraska State Patrol Cash Fund. Money from this fund shall be used to defray expenses incident to the administration of the Nebraska State Patrol. All funds received by the Nebraska State Patrol for services rendered shall be paid into the state treasury, and remitted to the State Treasurer shall credit the money for credit to the Nebraska State Patrol Cash Fund. All money in the Title Security and Vehicle Theft Prevention Fund on June 30, 1986, shall be transferred to the Nebraska State Patrol Cash Fund. Such fund shall be administered by the Superintendent of Law Enforcement and Public Safety. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Allowable uses of the fund shall include, but not be limited to, defraying the cost of:

(1) The vehicle identification inspection program established in sections 60-118 to 60-127;

(2) Investigations of odometer and motor vehicle fraud, motor vehicle licensing violations, and motor vehicle theft; and

(3) Other investigative expenses when money is specifically appropriated by the Legislature for such purposes.

Sec. 135. Section 81-2013, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2013. The State Treasurer shall, on May 21, 1973, establish in the state treasury two trust funds in the amount of four thousand dollars each, one to be known as the Michael B. Amos Educational Trust Fund and the other to be known as the James M. Amos Educational Trust Fund. Each such fund shall be expended solely for the purpose of providing financial assistance to the named beneficiary thereof in obtaining post-high school education. Disbursements from each of such funds shall be made upon application of the named beneficiary thereof and upon a showing that he is pursuing a course of post-high school education and may continue so long as he is pursuing such course and money remains in the fund. Any unexpended balance in either fund shall lapse to the General Fund upon (1) completion of the course of study or (2) discontinuance of such course prior to completion for a consecutive period of two years but any time spent on active duty in the armed forces of the United States shall not count as part of such two-year period. The entire amount in the Michael B. Amos Educational Trust Fund shall lapse to the General Fund on July 21, 1990, if the named beneficiary has not started a course of post-high school education prior to such date. The entire amount in the James M. Amos Educational Trust Fund shall lapse to the General Fund on October 7, 1993, if the named beneficiary has not started a course of post-high school education prior to such date. All money in each such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act for the benefit of the fund.

Sec. 136. Section 81-2236, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2236. (1) There is hereby created the Care Management Services Cash Fund to be administered by the Department on Aging and to which the State Treasurer shall credit ~~such money as shall~~ ~~(a) be money~~ (a) paid as fees, deposits, payments, and repayments relating to the fund, both principal and interest, and (b) be donated as gifts, bequests, grants, or other contributions to such fund from public or private entities. Funds made available by any department or agency of the United States may also be credited to such fund if so directed by such department.

(2) Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 137. Section 81-2272, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

81-2272. There is hereby created the Department on Aging Cash Fund. Such fund shall be administered by the Department on Aging. The department shall remit revenue from the following sources to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund:

(1) Money paid as fees, deposits, or contractual agreements; and

(2) Money donated as gifts, bequests, grants, or other contributions to such fund from public or private entities.

The fund shall be used for the administration of the Nebraska Community Aging Services Act and sections 81-2229 to 81-2235.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 138. Section 82-108.02, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

82-108.02. All funds received by the Nebraska State Historical Society for services rendered shall be ~~transmitted~~ remitted to the State Treasurer and by him deposited in the state treasury to the credit of for credit to the Historical Society Fund which is hereby established. Funds to the credit of the ~~Historical Society Fund~~ shall only be expended, as and when appropriated by the Legislature, by the Nebraska State Historical Society for the general purposes of such society. Any money in the ~~Historical Society Fund~~ Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 139. Section 83-121, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

83-121. There is hereby created the School District Reimbursement Fund for use by the Department of Public Institutions. The fund shall consist of money received from school districts or the Department of Social Services pursuant to section 79-3341 for the operation of special education programs

within the Department of Public Institutions. The fund shall be used for the operation of such programs pursuant to sections 79-3341 to 79-3346.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 140. Section 83-129, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

83-129. There is hereby created the Department of Public Institutions Institutional Cash Fund. Revenue from all sources in any institution controlled by the Department of Public Institutions shall be remitted to the State Treasurer by the proper executive officer on the first day of each month for credit to the fund excluding revenue that is dedicated to other funds as specified by state statutes or federal funds received by the department. Money in the fund shall be used for the operating budget of the department as appropriated by the Legislature. Detailed reports showing the source of all money received shall be made to the department every thirty days.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 141. Section 83-169, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

83-169. The State Treasurer is hereby designated as the custodian of all funds received by the state from appropriations made by the Congress of the United States or from other sources, public or private, for the purpose of carrying out any state or federal act pertaining to alcoholism or drug abuse. The State Treasurer is authorized to receive and provide for the proper custody of such funds and establish such special funds and accounts as may be necessary to comply with the terms of any state or federal acts. The Director of Administrative Services shall draw warrants upon such funds upon presentation of proper vouchers by the division. In the event federal funds are available to the State of Nebraska for alcoholism and drug abuse programs, the division is authorized to comply with such requirements as may be necessary to obtain the maximum amount of federal funds and the most advantageous proportion possible insofar as this may be done without violating other provisions of the laws and Constitution of the State of Nebraska. Any money in such special funds and accounts available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 142. Section 83-210.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

83-210.01. There is hereby created a fund, to be known as the Small Business Enterprises Cash Fund, from which shall be appropriated such amounts as are available therefrom and as shall be considered incident to the administration of sections 83-210.03 to 83-210.07. The fund shall contain a percentage of the net proceeds derived from the operation of enterprises provided pursuant to sections 83-210.03 to 83-210.07 which do not employ more than three full-time people or the equivalent thereof if part-time employees are utilized. The net proceeds from the operation of such enterprises shall accrue to the blind operator, except for the percentage of the net proceeds that shall revert to the cash fund. Such fund shall be used for supervision and such other administrative purposes as shall be necessary. The percentage of the net proceeds that shall revert to the cash fund shall be determined by the department after an investigation has been made to reveal the gross proceeds, cost of operation, amount necessary to replenish the stock of merchandise, and the business needs of the blind individual. All equipment purchased from such cash fund shall be the property of the state and shall be disposed of only by sale at a fair market price. Any money in the cash fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 143. Section 84-133, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-133. (1) There is created a Governor's Policy Research Office in the executive branch of state government. The Governor's Policy Research Office shall consist of the Governor, a Director of Policy Research who shall be appointed by the Governor and serve at his or her pleasure, and such other employees as are appointed by the Director of Policy Research to achieve the purposes of sections 84-131 to 84-141 and for which adequate funding is available.

(2) The Governor, through the Governor's Policy Research Office,

shall encourage coordination of policy development in state government, inquire into the methods of policy and program development in state government, and provide adequate systems of records for policy development purposes and may prescribe the institution and uses of standards for effective state agency policy development.

(3) The Governor may direct any state department, agency, or institution of state government to furnish the Governor's Policy Research Office with such information, personnel, equipment, and services as are necessary to enable it to carry out its responsibilities and duties and to prescribe the terms thereof, including reimbursement of costs thereof, if any.

(4) The Governor shall be permitted to appoint the Director of Policy Research to serve as an ex officio, nonvoting member of any committee, commission, council, or other similar organization of a state agency, department, institution, or group of such bodies that is concerned with planning, research, or policy development. Opportunities for such representation on any public, nonfederal, regional bodies concerned with planning or research and operating wholly or partially within Nebraska shall also be provided when requested by the Governor. The Director of Policy Research may in turn delegate such membership to his or her staff or to an appropriate official of another state agency. The state, interstate, and regional organizations mentioned in this subsection shall make any necessary organizational adjustments to receive the ex officio member if requested to do so by the Governor.

(5) The Governor may delegate any of his or her powers, duties, and responsibilities as conferred by sections 84-131 to 84-141 to the Director of Policy Research.

(6) There is hereby created a fund to be known as the Governor's Policy Research Office Revolving Fund. All money credited to the fund shall be used by the Governor's Policy Research Office to enable it to carry out its statutory responsibilities and duties in research and policy development. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1269~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 144. Section 84-219, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-219. There is hereby created the Department of Justice Revolving Fund. The fund shall be administered by the Attorney General and shall consist of funds received from other governmental agencies for the provision of legal services pursuant to agreements with the Department of Justice. Money in the fund shall be used to pay the salaries and related expenses of department staff pursuant to the terms of such agreements.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 145. Section 84-220, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-220. There is hereby created the Department of Justice Cash Fund to be administered by the Attorney General. The fund shall consist of payments received for copies of the Report of the Attorney General of the State of Nebraska and Opinions of the Attorney General in bound, loose-leaf, microfiche, electronic, or other form. Money in the fund may be used for expenses incurred in publishing the Report of the Attorney General of the State of Nebraska and Opinions of the Attorney General.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to ~~sections 72-1237 to 72-1276~~ the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 146. Section 84-414, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-414. The State Surveyor, under the direction of the Board of Educational Lands and Funds, shall receive and account for all money derived from the operation of the survey record repository pursuant to sections 84-412 and 84-413, and shall pay such money to the State Treasurer, who shall keep such money in a separate fund to be known as credit it to the Survey Record Repository Fund which is hereby created. When appropriated by the Legislature, this fund shall be expended only for the purposes of sections 84-412 and 84-413. All money in the Survey Record Repository Fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to Chapter 72, article 12 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 147. Section 84-613, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-613. Any money in the Cash Reserve Fund available for investment

shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act. Any interest earned by the fund shall accrue to the General Fund.

Sec. 148. Section 84-907.03, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-907.03. There is hereby created the Secretary of State Administration Cash Fund. The fund shall consist of revenue received to defray costs as authorized in sections 84-901 to 84-908. The revenue shall be collected by the Secretary of State and remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to the fund. The fund shall be used to offset expenses incurred as a result of such sections.

Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1276 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 149. Section 84-1227, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

84-1227. There is hereby established in the state treasury a special fund to be known as the Records Management Cash Fund which, when appropriated by the Legislature, shall be expended by the Secretary of State for the purpose of providing records management services and assistance to political subdivisions. All fees and charges for the purpose of records management services and analysis received by the Secretary of State from the political subdivisions shall be deposited in remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to such fund. Any money in the Records Management Cash Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 150. Section 85-113, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

85-113. The matriculation fee to any college in the university shall be five dollars each for all persons, and the amount arising therefrom shall be paid into the hands of the university treasurer and shall be held as a library fund. The Board of Regents shall appropriate the same annually for the purchase of books for the university library. Any money in the library fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 151. Section 85-168, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

85-168. There is appropriated out of any money in the treasury belonging to the General Fund, and not otherwise appropriated, for the creation of the Bessey Memorial Fund the sum of four thousand dollars. Said The fund shall be and constitute a perpetual memorial fund evidencing the high esteem in which the people of this state hold the memory of the late Professor Charles E. Bessey, who for more than thirty years was closely identified with our state university as professor of botany, Dean of its agricultural college, Dean of Deans, and repeatedly for years its acting chancellor. He was a conspicuous figure in American science and education, one of the great teachers of his age, whose work and spirit have been the inspiration of thousands of students, a leader in the development of scientific agriculture, and the value of whose life and service to Nebraska and the West cannot be estimated in terms of money. Any money in the Bessey Memorial Fund fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to the provisions of sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 152. Section 85-192, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

85-192. There is hereby created a University of Nebraska at Omaha Cash Fund which shall consist of all fees and other money collected from students at the University of Nebraska at Omaha by authority of the Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska for university purposes, all receipts from all university activities at the University of Nebraska at Omaha collected in connection with the operation of such university, and the money and funds received at the time the University of Nebraska at Omaha was established. A record shall be kept separating such money and funds into appropriate and convenient accounts. All money and funds accruing to the cash fund when appropriated by the Legislature shall be used for the maintenance and operation of the University of Nebraska at Omaha and shall at all times be subject to the orders of the Board of Regents. No warrant shall be issued against such fund unless there is money sufficient to pay the same. There may be retained at the University of Nebraska at Omaha a sum not to exceed one

hundred seventy-five thousand dollars out of such money to make settlement and equitable adjustments to students entitled thereto, to carry on university activities contributing to the fund, and to provide for contingencies. The University of Nebraska at Omaha Cash Fund shall be in the custody of the State Treasurer. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

There is hereby created a University of Nebraska at Omaha Trust Fund which shall consist of all property, real or personal, now or hereafter acquired by or for the municipal University of Omaha by donation or bequest to it, which property shall be held and applied in the manner and according with the provisions of the will, deed, or instrument making such donation or bequest. All future donations or bequests to or for the University of Nebraska at Omaha shall be a part of such trust fund. Such trust fund shall be held and managed in such manner as the Board of Regents shall determine. Such holdings and management shall be in strict accordance with all terms of the donation or bequest, but in the absence of any investment instructions the funds may be invested by or at the direction of the Board of Regents in such investments as are authorized for trustees, guardians, personal representatives, or administrators under the laws of Nebraska. Any money in such fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 153. Section 85-606.01, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

85-606.01. The Board of Trustees of the Nebraska State Colleges, any community college area board, and the Board of Regents of the University of Nebraska shall have the authority to purchase retirement annuity contracts for any or all of their employees at the direction of the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1259 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act and may enter into contracts with their employees providing for the purchase of such retirement annuity contracts under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, as amended. Such employment contracts may provide that the amounts contributed by the employer for such annuity contracts shall be the result of an agreement of the employee to take a reduction in salary or to forego an increase in salary, but only to the extent such amounts are earned by the employee after the agreement becomes effective. Such an agreement must be legally binding and irrevocable with respect to amounts earned while the agreement is in effect. The right of an employee to such an annuity contract is nonforfeitable, except for failure to pay future premiums. Such an annuity contract is nontransferable.

Sec. 154. Section 88-552, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

88-552. There is hereby created in the state treasury a fund to be known as the Nebraska Grain Warehouse Surveillance Cash Fund. Such fund shall be used solely for disbursing funds and receiving reimbursement for services performed by the commission in the suspension or termination of a warehouse operation. All money received by the commission for such services shall be deposited in remitted to the State Treasurer for credit to such fund. Any money in the fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 155. Section 90-248, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, is amended to read:

90-248. The land described in section 90-247 shall be sold to the highest bidder at public auction. The income from the sale of all or any portion of the land described in section 90-247 shall be deposited in the State Treasurer's Land Sales Distributive Fund, which fund is hereby created. The distributive fund shall be used only for the purpose of refunding money to the purchaser of the land as provided by any contract or agreement or, when all conditions of the sale have been fulfilled, for transfer of the income from the sale and any accrued interest to the State Treasurer for credit to the General Fund. Any money in the distributive fund available for investment shall be invested by the state investment officer pursuant to sections 72-1237 to 72-1269 the Nebraska Capital Expansion Act and the Nebraska State Funds Investment Act.

Sec. 156. Original sections 2-115, 2-1070, 2-1503.01, 2-1547, 2-1577, 2-1587, 2-1808, 2-2317, 2-2408.02, 2-2705, 2-2705.01, 2-3110, 2-3322, 2-3413, 2-3521, 2-3633, 2-3763, 2-3812, 2-3814, 2-3911, 2-4018, 3-126, 3-156, 8-1120, 35-601, 37-202.03, 37-428, 37-1305, 39-846, 39-1390, 39-2401, 43-1906, 44-707.03, 46-670, 46-1121, 48-617, 48-620, 48-1707, 48-1810, 50-437, 51-606,

54-147, 54-857, 54-1173, 54-1371, 54-2004, 55-131, 60-305.14, 60-1409, 66-1224, 68-301, 68-723, 71-1,237, 71-1,243, 71-1,283, 71-1,288, 71-222.02, 71-381, 71-2016, 71-2201, 71-4718, 71-4732, 71-6116, 71-6228, 72-202, 72-232.07, 74-1317, 77-3,111, 77-2365, 79-340, 79-1345, 79-1910.01, 79-2009.01, 79-2107, 79-3363, 80-301.02, 80-401, 81-161.06, 81-201.05, 81-2,147.11, 81-2,162.27, 81-2,164.03, 81-2,174, 81-2,237, 81-815.30, 81-815.45, 81-815.51, 81-815.52, 81-829.42, 81-845, 81-8,107, 81-8,110.07, 81-8,225, 81-8,239.03, 81-8,239.09, 81-8,260.02, 81-912, 81-1108.02, 81-1108.24, 81-1117, 81-1120, 81-1120.22, 81-1120.40, 81-1201.22, 81-1354.03 to 81-1354.05, 81-1414.04, 81-15,103, 81-15,143, 81-15,161.01, 81-15,183, 81-1635, 81-1835, 81-2004, 81-2004.02, 81-2013, 81-2236, 81-2272, 82-108.02, 83-121, 83-129, 83-169, 83-210.01, 84-133, 84-219, 84-220, 84-414, 84-613, 84-907.03, 84-1227, 85-113, 85-168, 85-192, 85-606.01, 88-552, and 90-248, Reissue Revised Statutes of Nebraska, and sections 1-111, 2-1208.04, 2-15,122, 9-811.01, 32-204, 33-102, 43-1321, 45-127, 46-1403, 48-1,103, 48-622.01, 48-622.02, 48-2115, 50-114.05, 69-1317, 71-1,206.13, 71-5661, and 71-7528, Revised Statutes Supplement, 1994, are repealed.